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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the
GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liabilities whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”] of Town Health International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”| collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading; (2] there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Executive directors:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee (Chairman)
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung J.P.
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

Company secretary and qualified
accountant:

Mr. Mak Yau Hing CPA, FCCA

Compliance officer:
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

Audit committee:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu (Chairman)
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung J.p.
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

Authorized representatives:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

Auditors:

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants
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Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
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Grand Cayman
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Principal bankers:

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Principal share registrar and
transfer office:

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street,

George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands

British West Indies

Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office:

Tengis Limited

G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre

56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registered office:

Ugland House
P.O. Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands

British West Indies
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Head office and principal place
of business:

Shop 37, Level 3,

Hilton Plaza Commercial Centre,

3-9 Shatin Centre Street,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

J
<

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

T R R &
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It

Zf

w0

A

M B

Al

PATR A3 /0015 1) & 32 i 3R BE R 7S 5 B 2
ERAF=A=+—-BLEFE(XRF
FH - LEAFE  BRREERERSA
REMBAR ([FERISIARE]) 2
DERRERTRRY - U RHEBERR
Em EZnRkFNESONES ASE
At - "FEAHERRERBEMRN —
Folpth REZLRREEESHB L AR
AEHE KARABRRZ— KRBT E
BERRZESN -

=3

o
RSN

1)
NG

[

£ JE)

CIEARFE  AELETCEAD TURNE

AR HERTRERRAK  mREA
BEEM HEERERBEZNERITE
A NARY  EHRESE SAKE

bz BERERTHRGEXARERE
B o A AR EMUE 2 MK B R A
—REBBENEEBRARAR ([REEER
D RmEERE (2R BRAR ([HEE
B ) A R e R
SEEXBARKEHEHEHE R BERER
i A g 2 R o

’ IE?i‘J

8 B OB 2 KR & R

Foreword

| am pleased to report to the shareholders the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2005
(“the current year”). Looking back on the current year,
Town Health International Holdings Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Town Health” or the “Group”) had recorded
encouraging results in respect of its core business of
healthcare and dental services, and the sale of healthcare
and pharmaceutical products and surgical equipment.
Therefore, one may well say that the current year was a
year of milestone in the development of Town Health.
Besides, the participation of Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, a
local prominent investor, in the Group as one of the largest
shareholders had greatly strengthened the shareholder base

of the Group.

Business review

During the current year, the economy of Hong Kong had
continued its recovery from SARS as all walks of life thriving
and the citizens' income increasing generally. This resulted
in rise of demand for quality healthcare services as people
seeking medical advices for minor sickness and having
regular body-checkup, thus bringing about steady growth
in the turnover of the Group's core business of healthcare
and dental services. Moreover, the leap in the Group's
turnover and profits before goodwill amortization and
impairment was attributable to the Group’s two newly
acquired subsidiaries, namely First Oriental Medical
Technology Group Limited (“First Oriental”) and Pacific
Medical (Holding) Company Limited (“Pacific Medical”) that
had started to contribute to the operational revenue and

operating profits of the Group.
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The Group had re-assessed the prospect of its investments
in subsidiaries, associates, medical and dental practices. In
consideration of the current market conditions and the
prospect of such investments, for prudence sake, the Group
had during the current year recognised an impairment loss
of HK$43,303,000 in total in respect of the goodwill arising
on the acquisitions of certain of such investments. However,
after such re-assessment of goodwill, the Board expected
that the Group will no longer incur significant impairment

loss of goodwill in the forthcoming year.

Prospects

We see a promising prospect for the development of local
healthcare market in the new year. With the implementation
by the SAR Government of the policy of medical fees linked
to medical costs in order to alleviate the citizens' reliance
on public medical services and to lessen the Government's
annual medical commitment, it is expected that the
Government will gradually raise the public medical fees,
and that the citizens will, as a result, shift more of their
medical consumption to private medical institutions.
Besides, after the outbreak of SARS, citizens in the territory
have higher awareness of health and are willing to spent
more on healthcare. The change in such objective factors
has broadened the room for growth of the local private
medical services market and favoured the development of

the private medical institutions.
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Town Health as one of Hong Kong's biggest private medical
groups, is sure to tap on this favourable situation. The
Group will seek opportunities to locate appropriate places
across the territory for setting up additional Town Health
out-patient and specialist services centers. In addition, in a
view to minimize the exposure to potential increase in
operational costs, the Group is under prudent consideration

to purchase premises for its business of clinic operation.

What is more, the Group will open various specialist centers,
including dermatological centres, ophthalmology centres and
hair-planting centres and etc, to serve patients of different
needs. In light of the Government's efforts to promote
education on disease prevention in recent years and to
call on the citizens to have health checkup as precautions,
the Group expects the demand for health checkup services
would increase and intends to open a one-stop health
checkup and medical laboratory-test centre next year, with
an aim to achieve complementary effects to the Group's

healthcare services.

It has been the Group’s policy to develop with effort
businesses related to medical technology, of which the
business of its subsidiaries First Oriental and Pacific Medical
had generated steady income, and it is expected that
considerable profit contributions will continue to be made
in the new year. The Group will keep on identifying
acquisition opportunities as the Board considers cost-
effective acquisition is conducive to the growth of the

Group.
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The Group plans to expand into the healthcare market of
Macau next year as the healthcare consumption of the
people there goes up with its flourishing economy, making

it a promising market worth exploring.

Strategic shareholder

The Group's shareholder structure had undergone major
change as the Group had successfully enlisted Dr. Francis
Choi Chee Ming, a local prominent entrepreneur and
investor, to participate in the Group as one of the largest
shareholders. The whole participation was completed on
31st May, 2005 and had raised total cash proceeds of
HK$85,000,000 which greatly strengthened the Group’s

cash position.

The participation of Dr. Choi into the Group not only
reinforces the Group’s cash position, but also contributes
much to the future business development of Town Health
in all aspects through the intensive business network and

market connections of Dr. Choi.
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Brandname management

Town Health has a history of more than 15 years since its
foundation in 1989, and its brand name has struck root in
the hearts of the people and has enjoyed their deep
confidence, which is hard-earned. To further consolidate
the citizens' confidence in brand name “Town Health”, the
Group has, starting from this year, been providing free
medical information to the public extensively through the
newspapers, magazines and television programmes.
Besides, the Group's bimonthly magazine Health Digest
([EEfEEL{R]) has also started publication and distribution
to the citizens free of charge. The Group believes all these
help to improve the general medical knowledge of the
public, and could further publicize the brandname “Town

Health".

Acknowledgement

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to our staff for
their unremitting efforts rendered over the past year.
Moreover, | would also like to express my appreciation to

our shareholders for their continuous support to the Group.

Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd June, 2005
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Financial review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$179,536,000 for
the year ended 31st March, 2005 (2004
HK$109,717,000), representing an increase of 63.6% as

compared with the prior year. The significant increase was
due to the improvement in the performance of the segment
of provision of medical and dental services, as well as the
additional turnover contributed by the two newly acquired
subsidiaries, First Oriental Medical Technology Group Limited
(“First Oriental”) and Pacific Medical (Holding) Company
Limited (“Pacific Medical”).

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2005
was 41.4% (2004 — 44.7%).

Administrative expenses rose by 50.1% to HK$106,133,000
for the year ended 31st March, 2005, as compared with
the corresponding amount of HK$70,689,000 in prior year.
Out of the amount recorded in the current year, an
aggregate of HK$21,792,000 was attributable to First
Oriental and Pacific Medical, the two newly acquired
subsidiaries. Discounting this amount, the administrative
expenses rose by 19.3% which was largely due to the

Group's business expansion initiatives that involved increase

in administrative staff costs and promotion expenses.

The Group has re-assessed the prospect of its investments
in subsidiaries, medical practices and dental practices. In
view of the current market conditions and the prospect of
such investments, the Group, for prudence sake, recognised
an impairment loss of HK$19,237,000 (2004 -
HK$900,000) in respect of the goodwill arising on the

acquisitions of certain of such investments.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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The Group recorded a loss from operations of
HK$48,236,000 (2004 — HK$25,153,000). Included in such

loss are certain non-cash items as listed below:

2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
BB R - fEs Impairment loss recognised in respect
FTEDRFEEE of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions
ZERRREREE of subsidiaries, medical and
dental practices 19,237,000 900,000
ME - BB MR Depreciation and amortisation of property,

T E R plant and equipment 18,742,000 6,545,000
BIHWBERB LR Amortisation of goodwill arising

(k=S &- A on the acquisitions of subsidiaries,

Fisme medical and dental practices 7,829,000 3,605,000
RIZRBEE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 2,158,000 1,458,000
GFERE Allowance for inventories 1,550,000 5,000,000
HEWE BER Loss on disposal of property,

B TE= plant and equipment 118,000 1,034,000
MEEEEMER Impairment loss recognised in respect

ZRIEE B of intangible assets - 3,157,000
HERBRTEZH Loss on disposal of medical and

Z &8 dental practices - 1,500,000
BIVEE I Amortisation of intangible assets - 733,000

0
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Discounting these items, the Group recorded in real-term
an operating profit of HK$1,398,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2005 (2004 — loss of HK$1,221,000).

The Group has also re-assessed the prospects of its
associated companies. In view of the current market
conditions, the Group, for prudence sake, recognised in
aggregate an impairment loss of HK$24,066,000 (2004 —
HK$2,535,000) in respect of the goodwill arising on the

acquisitions of certain of such associates.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group held cash and bank
balances of HK$34,166,000 (2004 — HK$57,008,000). Net
current assets amounted to HK$44,000,000 (2004 -
HK$60,703,000). Current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was 2.27 (2004
—3.41).

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$7,116,000, which are secured by
leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a total net
book value of HK$9,975,000. The bank borrowings bore
interest at prevailing market rates and repayable in

accordance with the relevant loan agreements.

The Group was also granted overdraft and revolving loan
facilities from a bank in Hong Kong for a total of
HK$20,000,000 which are secured by the pledge of bank
deposits of HK$10,000,000. The facilities were not utilized
as at 31st March, 2005.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Capital structure

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group had shareholders’ equity
of HK$123,414,000 (2004 — HK$189,842,000). Debt-to-
equity ratio (defined as total liabilities divided by
shareholders’ equity) was 0.34 (2004 — 0.14).

Major currencies used for the Group's transactions were
Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and US Dollars. As Hong
Kong Dollars are pegged to the US Dollars and the fiscal
policy of the Central Government of the People’s Republic
of China in relation to Renminbi is stable throughout the
year, the Group considers that the potential foreign

exchange exposure of the Group is limited.

Employee information

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by

EREE S 2 AEEE T ABBEMEZ M responsibilities as at 31st March, 2005 and 2004 is set
™ out below:
2005 2004
N Medical and dental practitioners 42 35
e Assistant nurses 111 111
BEREAEB Management 11 4
HE 1TH/XEXZIE  Sales/Administration/Clerical support 53 22
217 172

8 B OB 2 KR & R
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Approximately 10% of the total employees are stationed

in the PRC and the remaining are stationed in Hong Kong.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on
industry practices and individual's performance and
experience. On top of regular remuneration, discretionary
bonus and share option may be granted to eligible staff by
reference to the Group's performance as well as individual's

performance.

The Group maintains good relationship with its staff. There
has not been any interruption to its operations as a result
of labour disputes. In addition, the Group provides
provident fund to its employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements of the respective jurisdictions in

where the employees reside.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group had no significant

contingent liabilities.

Pledge of assets

As at 31st March, 2005, certain leasehold land and buildings
of the Group with the net book value of HK$9,975,000
and bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 were pledged to

secure general bank facilities granted to the Group.
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Subsequent events

@

(b)

On
convertible bond of HK$32,000,000 to independent

11th April, 2005, the Company placed

third parties. The conversion price was HK$0.037
per share subject to adjustment in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the bond instruments.
A total of 864,864,864 shares were allotted and
issued upon the conversion in full of the convertible
bond during the period from 22nd April, 2005 to
23rd May, 2005.

On 20th April, 2005, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Broad Idea International
Limited (“Broad Idea") pursuant to which Broad Idea
will subscribe for the 2,384,932,060 shares of the
Company at an issue price of HK$0.037 per share
subject to the terms and conditions of the

subscription agreement.

Broad Idea is an investment holding company incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is

owned by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, an executive directors of the

Company, as to 50.1%.

Details of this subscription were set out in the

announcement and circular of the Company dated 20th

April, 2005 and 12th May, 2005 respectively. The above

subscription was completed on 31st May, 2005.
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Change in auditors of the group
in the preceding three years

On 13th March, 2003, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
resigned as auditors of the Company and Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu were appointed as auditors of the
Company. Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who have
been acting as auditors of the Group since then, will offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

Competing interests

None of the directors, management shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which
competes or may complete with the business of the Group

during the year.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review the Company’'s annual
report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board
of Directors. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting

and internal control procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, Mr. Ho
Kwok Wah, George and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung. Mr. Chan
Kam Chiu is the chairman of the Committee. The

Committee has met four times during the year.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited

results for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

Purchase, sale or redemption of
shares
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's shares.

Board practice and procedures

For the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Company was
in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as

set out in rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Executive directors

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, aged 41, is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as well as the founder of
the Group. Dr. Cho is also the compliance officer of the
Company. Dr. Cho graduated from the University of Hong
Kong and holds the qualifications of MBBS (HK), FHKCFP,
FRACGP, DCH (London), DCH (RCP&SI) and DCH
(Glasgow). He is also the Permanent President of Hong
Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited.
Dr. Cho founded the Group in December 1989 and now is
responsible for directing the Group's overall business and
development strategies. He is the brother of Mr. Cho Kwai
Yee, Kevin. Dr. Cho is also a director of Origin Limited, the

substantial shareholder of the Company.

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet, aged 38, is the Director of
Medical Services of the Group. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and holds the qualifications of
MBBS (HK), MRCGP, DCH (London), DFM (CUHK) and
Dip Med (CUHK). He joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the strategic development of information

technology-related operation of the Group.

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin, aged 43, is a qualified
associate engineer in building services. He has been
involved in the field of construction, renovation and business
management in the past 16 years and has been holding
various senior executive positions in a number of
corporations. Mr. Cho was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 24th July, 2001. He is responsible for
the business development of the Company. Mr. Cho is the
brother of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee. Mr. Cho is also a director of
Health Matrix International Limited, an associated company

of the Company.
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Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, aged 52, has engaged in the catering
industry for almost 30 years. He has also involved in
entertainment, property and investment project in the recent
years. Mr. Chan is the President (founding chairman) of
Hong Kong Shatin Industries & Commerce Association
Limited and currently an executive member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Qingxin County, Guangdong Province and
member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangzhou Fang Cun. He is
also an honorary president and director of Shatin Sports
Association Limited since 1992 and the chairman of the
Shatin District Junior Police Call since 1996. He was a
Hong Kong District Affairs Advisor to Xinhua News Agency
for the period from January 1995 to June 1997. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an Independent non-executive Director
and the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
both on 30th July, 2002.

Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP, aged 51, is the chairman of
the Shatin District Council. Mr. Wai is a councillor of the
Shatin District Council since 1988. He was also the
chairman of the Culture, Sports and Community
Development Committee of the Shatin Provisional District
Board for the period form 1998 to 1999. He is currently a
vice-president of Shatin Sports Association Limited, a
director of the board of governors of Tin Sum Valley Public
School and Management Committee Member of Helen
Liang Memorial Secondary School. Mr. Wai was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company both on 30th July,

2002.
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Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George, aged 47, is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He is the
proprietor of George K. W. Ho & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and possesses over 20 years' professional
experience in accounting, auditing, tax planning and
business advisory. Mr. Ho is also a director of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Association of
Accounting Technicians Limited and the Hong Kong
Commerce and Industry Associations Limited. Mr. Ho was
an independent non-executive director of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited and MAXX Biosciences Holdings Limited
before his resignation as director of the respective company
on 11th April, 2002 and 31st December, 2003. Except for
the above-mentioned, Mr. Ho does not hold any directorship
in other listed companies in the past three years. Mr. Ho
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee of the Company

both on 28th September, 2004.

Senior management

Mr. Mak Yau Hing, aged 36, is the financial controller,
the company secretary and the qualified accountant of the
Company who is responsible for the financial and
accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.
Ms. Mak graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the United Kingdom. Mr.
Mak joined the Group in July 1999.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended

31st March, 2005.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45

to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2005 are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 35 of the annual report.

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$8,103,000 for the

expansion of the Group's business.

Details of these and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set

out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries and associates

During the year, the Group disposed of its 25% interests
in Fortune Way Trading Limited and Smart Leading Limited
at consideration of HK$250,000 and HK$1, respectively.
Fortune Way Trading Limited and Smart Leading Limited
are companies incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in

retailing of traditional Chinese medicine.

J
<

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited




5 =2 R B B

DIRECTORS” REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

MEATRBE QTR (&)
FRN - KAEBRSMKE27,500,000% 7T &
E B A42,127,000/% 7o Wi b0 i B8 & (32
i) BBR AR ([MAHTEE ) 56.130%0 A% # - 1A
MEREIRNEBE LS TMK Iz RERE
AR MEMBAREEREAPBE KR
REBZER  BEEEREEREESH
Bk EBRDERE N FiTEeS o

RN AARE 2,806,000 T UL FE L o 4R o [
BE (BB) BRABZ40%ES - Bhe 43 o
BES (BB BRABINREBEMAILZ
NE - FERESHE - BEEREI®RE:

AN A A LA {E 990,000 JT U B Pherson
Limited Z 33%7## z= ° Pherson Limited Jh 72 &
BHMKREREMEZ QAR - KRFIH
TESEE & 7% £ Pherson Limited g & z&

e
S o

AR T ARE 492,355,000 7T 1% B8 L je 2 X
AR ERAR2.2104s - THERLE
MR ERRAAIDRASHSEMKIZA
A EHRODEEBAEBERZMBRAFE
ERET  TERSREZHRG -

8 B OB 2 KB & R

al

&

Subsidiaries and associates (continved)

During the year, the Group acquired 56.13% interest in
Pacific Medical (Holding) Company Limited (“Pacific
Medical”) at a cash consideration of HK$27,500,000 and
direct costs of approximately HK$2,127,000. Pacific Medical
is an investment holding company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the sales of cardiology and peripheral vascular related
surgical equipment to hospitals, medical institutions and
medical practitioners in the People's Republic of China

and Hong Kong.

The Company acquired 40% interest in Next Dimension
Advertising (H.K.) Limited at a consideration of
HK$2,806,000. Next Dimension Advertising (H.K.) Limited
is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and principally

engaged in promotion, advertising and artwork production.

The Company acquired 33% interest in Pherson Limited at
a consideration of HK$990,000. Pherson Limited is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and principally
engaged in property holding. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, the
executive director of the Company, has beneficial interest

in Pherson Limited.

The Company acquired a further of 2.219% interest in
Plasmagene Biosciences Limited, the existing associate of
the Company, at a consideration of approximately
HK$2,355,000. Plasmagene Biosciences Limited is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and principally engaged in

the provision of diagnostic services.
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Subsidiaries and associates (continved)

Details of the Company's principal associates and
subsidiaries at 31st March, 2005 are set in notes 18 and

45 to the financial statements respectively.

Convertible bond

On 24th November, 2004, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with an independent placing agent in
connection with the placing of HK$19,000,000 convertible
bond, to independent third parties. A total of 497,614,604
shares were allotted and issued upon the conversions in
full of the convertible bond during the year with a
conversion price ranged from HK$0.038 to HK$0.051 per

share.

Share capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of
shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's shares.
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Share options

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements. Other than as
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company

or any other body corporate.

There were no share options granted to the Company’s

directors during the year.

Directors and directors’ service
contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
Mr. Cho Kam Luk
(resigned on 28th September, 2004)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George
(appointed on 28th September, 2004)
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Directors and directors’ service
contracts (continued)

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles
of Association, Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung have been
appointed for a term of two years expiring on 29th July,
2006, and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George has been appointed
for a term of two years expiring on 27th September, 2006.
The appointments are subject to retirement by rotation
and other related provisions as stipulated in the Articles of

Association of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, none of directors has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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Directors’ and chief executives
interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31st March, 2005, the interests of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which require
notification to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests
and short position which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Sections 352 or 345 of Part XV of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
required, pursuant to Rule 5.40 to 5.58 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities in the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"GEM Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange were as follows:

ARF The Company

BBz IFE Long position in shares
e #1T EARRAEET
Exps %) EER™E RABDLL
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company

HEFEE

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

KRR A
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

BXIEEAERE (M)
Held by controlled

corporation (note)

BEDEAA

Beneficial owner

J
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163,330,641

2,689,090

9.35%

0.15%
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EERTETHBAERMKR Directors’ and chief executives’
- HERHORES 2#EHRE interests in shares, underlying

(%) shares and debentures (continved)

BfaE © Origin Limited# 48 & 163,330,641 0%  Note: An aggregate of 163,330,641 shares were held by Origin
B RARAR_ZETRF=R=+—H Limited, representing approximately 9.35% of the
2 B EITIR 1D #99.35% © Origin Limited % B Company's shares in issue as at 31st March, 2005. The
BEETRABEEFELEHE - entire issued share capital of Origin Limited is owned by

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee.

B EXEEEN  WZZERE=A=1+  Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the

—H EBEARAFRREESREEKRAE352  chief executives of the Company, nor their associates had

HIASEMEFE 2 S MATEcek - &A27  any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

BEE IBETRABREE2BEALH  shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations

MUERAT SEF BB EE 2R LAEE  as at 31st March, 2005 as recorded in the register required

P HEEEMNERIORE - to be kept by the Company under sections 352 or 345 of
the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders

As at 31st March, 2005, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the following

shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interests

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.
B #T EEARE BT
REREZH %) EERHRE REBDL
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company

Origin Limited BEnEBEA (HiF1) 163,330,641 9.35%
Beneficial Owner (Note 1)
5 58 Bt BEnEAEA (Ki2) 103,896,103 5.95%

Fung Kam Shuen

Mt

(1) Origin Limitedf & & #£163,330,641& K& (1)
7 HERRR_ZTETRF=A=+—8H
2 BB TR AR #)9.35% © Origin Limited & 2B
BABE o

ERTREARAEE

2) BRPLER-_ZTTRFHUA=-+—HBE ()
F9{E &% 0.0707%8 T HH & 19,900,0000% i
7o Bt B EARRBEEARA

Beneficial Owner (Note 2)

Notes:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee.

An aggregate of 163,330,641 shares were held by Origin
Limited, representing approximately 9.35% of the
Company's shares in issue as at 31st March, 2005. The
entire issued share capital of Origin Limited is owned by

Mr. Fung Kam Shuen disposed of 19,900,000 shares at
an average price of HK$0.070 each on 21st April, 2005.
Accordingly, Mr. Fung Kam Shuen retained shares in the

Z B An L7 5% e Company less than 5% since then.

BREXHEBEEN RZTETRF=A=1+—
H ARAGBUEEREMALERRRDE
TRAREAEMEMAERAEIOAR -

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March,
2005.

J
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EAHERRERAARARNBARZEEME
BETERAINERERBARAA -
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I8 28 0 B 4F 9 £ 17 05 ) 4 2T ST AE 22
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Hit kA B2 BN EHES (R ERR
) R/ R 2% -
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31st March, 2005, the percentage of
turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
is less than 30% of the Group's total turnovers. The five
largest suppliers of the Group and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 54% and 37% of the Group's

total purchases respectively.

Included in the five largest suppliers are Kowloon Hearing
Services Limited which is owned by Mr. Lai Kwok Fai, a

director of the Company's subsidiary.

Other than the aforementioned, at no time during the year,
none of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company's share capital) had a beneficial interest

in anyone of the Group's top five suppliers.

Competing interests

Save as disclosed in the section “Major Customers and
Suppliers”, none of the directors, management shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group

during the year.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures

Save as disclosed under the section of “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

J
<
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—EENFERA+=H REBEHENET
REERAF (RRARMBRAREEETHRAE
EZRR)RBEETHREERT LEHE -
RBE_ZTRF=A=1+—HILEFE K
SEANEEERBERAAXIMNTH
2,079,000 7T °

B 5 1R 5 A ¥4k £ TR B R A1 E R
BR S BHEFBERMERRMGE43EE -

ARABYFATEEFHR LA ZTINA
AR R EBEHRGBRTELE®RGEK
SUAEEMETERBLE=THZEAX
B2 GERET BERAREABRZBR
FARERNTAARNARRRERN G &

Eon
A °

ZTETERF=A=+—08  AEEUEAEK
{8990,000/% 7T B A Pherson Limited (B & F
BEEGEEmER AR 330 AR o T
SHBHRI B mMRM 43 -

8 B OB 2 KB & R
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Connected transactions

On 13th September, 2004, the Group entered into a master
agreement with Kowloon Hearing Services Limited, a
company in which the director of that company is also a
director of the Company's subsidiary, in relation to the
purchase of certain hearing-aid products. For the year ended
31st March, 2005, the Group paid approximately

HK$2,079,000 to Kowloon Hearing Services Limited.

The transaction is regarded as continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the GEM Listing. Particulars of this
transaction is disclosed in note 43 to the financial

statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the above transactions had been conducted
in ordinary and usual course of business of the Company,
on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

On 31st March, 2005, the Group acquired 33% equity
interest in Pherson Limited, a company in which Dr. Cho
Kwai Chee has a beneficial interest, at a cash consideration
of HK$990,000. The details of the transaction are set out

in note 43 to the financial statements.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Board practice and procedures

For the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Company was
in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as

set out in rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors are independent.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board
of Directors. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, Mr. Ho
Kwok Wah, George and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung. Mr. Chan Kam
Chiu is the chairman of the Committee. The Committee

has met four times during the year.
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Post balance sheet events

Details of significant events occurring after the balance

sheet date are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd June, 2005
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Deloitte.
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BEREKRERERA A
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(REEBERMA T2 HRAR)

AZBEE TR EREISE
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
26/F Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

®E - BAERHSSET
SBPBTHEP1115R
KLPIN261E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 35 to
123 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the

Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at 31st March, 2005 and of the loss and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd June, 2005

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BHE-_ZTTRF=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005
2005 2004
Bt 5% BT BT
Notes HKS$ HK$
e Turnover 4 179,535,937 109,717,220
5 & A A Cost of sales (105,199,024) (60,660,700)
E 7 Gross profit 74,336,913 49,056,520
H 48 A Other operating income 5 2,797,479 2,037,351
TR X Administrative expenses (106,133,466) (70,689,249)
HUENE A Impairment loss recognised
ﬁ@&?f B2 Ffr in respect of goodwill
STEEZEER arising on acquisitions
5)32@)%?5 of subsidiaries, medical and
dental practices (19,236,861) (900,000)
H 48 & B 2 Other operating expenses 6 - (4,657,233)
KREEE Loss from operations 7 (48,235,935) (25,152,611)
Bl & A Finance costs 8 (787,564) (1,260,428)
BERTERE QA Gain (loss) on dilution and
2 Was (B 18) disposal of associates 9 5,104,790 (46,592,377)
X R NGTE Share of results of associates 1,290,989 (4,850,016)
HEWEA Rz W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 33 - 191,118
BOEHE—MER A Gain on partial disposal
2 Was of a subsidiary 33,056 -
BIEWBHE DA Amortisation of goodwill arising on
FiismE acquisitions of associates (8,765,277) (6,553,130)
U B Bk 8 X R PR 1S Impairment loss recognised
EEZE®R in respect of goodwill
BIE BB arising on acquisitions
of associates (24,066,490) (2,534,688)
N Allowances for amounts due
TR B from associates (1,898,658) -
BRI A& 1B Loss before taxation (77,325,089) (86,752,132)
TR Taxation 12 (1,055,534) (517,153)
Ket D EH IR LS 2 518 Loss before minority interests (78,380,623) (87,269,285)
DER R Minority interests (5,950,062) (400,025)
FEFBE Net loss for the year (84,330,685) (87,669,310)
TR EE Loss per share
— AR KEE - Basic and diluted 13 (6.36 filicents) (8.98 fllicents)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Investments in securities

Amounts due from investees
companies

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Secured bank borrowings
— due within one year

Net current assets

B 7
Notes

14
15
16
18
19

20

21
22

24

25

26

Total assets less current liabilities

J
<
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=
5
oy
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2005 2004

BT BT

HK$ HK$
25,839,875 35,671,812
- 1,800,000
44,184,246 44,569,819
24,208,126 47,448,159
3,657,952 3,681,952
865,702 675,860
98,755,901 133,847,602
8,783,991 4,265,678
27,103,400 20,742,022
7,343,405 3,209,149
1,135,383 653,907
10,000,000 10,000,000
24,165,816 47,007,994
78,531,995 85,878,750
33,271,703 22,361,389
657,820 2,814,725
602,039 =
34,531,562 25,176,114
44,000,433 60,702,636
142,756,334 194,550,238

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
RZFZRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005
2005 2004
B & BT BT
Notes HKS$ HK$

EREBEE Non-current liabilities
FEFIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 859,120 779,851

EEBRITIEER Secured bank borrowings
— —F1& 5|5 — due after one year 26 6.513,984 -
7,373,104 779,851
DEBRRER Minority interests 11,969,021 3,928,730
123,414,209 189,841,657

EEXR#E Capital and reserves

R 7R Share capital 29 17,467,966 12,491,820
R Reserves 105,946,243 177,349,837
123,414,209 189,841,657

FILE 2B ERREHAESIN_Z
ERESNA T B ERBRERZETHT

The financial statements on pages 35 to 123 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

IATREREFERT

EET
Cho Kwai Chee
o

Director

22nd June, 2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

BER
Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
EZ

Director

9,
RA & m Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Amount due to a subsidiary

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

EET

Cho Kwai Chee

EF

Director

K & R 2

{

al

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

2005 2003
B £ 8 TT BT
Notes HK$ HK$
17 123,244,763 174,019,746
18 232,744 216,241
123,477,507 174,235,987
22 1,976,388 1,386,682
17 13,267,707 14,217,707
10,000,000 10,000,000
7,073,732 18,783,250
32,317,827 44 387,639
24 631,380 105,758
31,686,447 44 281,881
155,163,954 218,517,868
27 33,641,577 35,106,682
121,522,377 183,411,186
29 17,467,966 12,491,820
31 104,054,411 170,919,366
121,522,377 183,411,186
BRE
Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
R
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_TTAF=HA=1—HBILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

aft REEN
Bx  R0EE  RAR&G  2REE (RRER) @t

Retained

profits

Share Share Capital Distributable (accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve losses) Total
B B BT BT B AT
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

(Hrati) (Kt i)
(Note i) (Note if)
R-EE=FNA-A At st April, 2003 89,968,200 116,060,008 10,032,822 - 38820467 254,881,497
RAHR %2 Effect of capital reduction (80,971,380) - - 72670245 8301135 =
RiTH Ko Issue of new shares 3495000 19,790,000 - - - 23285000
RHETRAX Share issue expenses - (655,530) - = = (655,530)
EREER Net loss for the year - - - - (87669310) (87669,310)
RZZEME=A=+—H At 31st March, 2004 12,491,820 135194478 10,032,822 72,670,245  (40,547708) 189,841,657
¥HBH Issue of new shares 4976146 14,023,854 - - - 19,000,000
RO ETHEX Share issue expenses - (1,096,763) - - - (1,096,763)
EEEF Net loss for the year - - - - (84330,685) (84,330,685)
RZZTRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005 17467966 148,121,569 10,032,822 72,670,245 (124,878,393) 123,414,209
Mt Notes:
0) REBZRAFEIIBAARMETER () Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
% 2 E {350,000/ 7T £ Town Health (BVI) between the nominal value of HK$350,000 of the ordinary
Limited BBER _TZTTFMAETZEE share issued by the Company and the nominal value of
HEFEBERRHUE 2B R R) 2 KA the share capital of approximately HK$10,383,000 of Town
E{E#4710,383,000/8 /L2 =% ° Health (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation
in April 2000.

(i) AEBMz A H D RFEEIERAERBATE (i)  The distributable reserve of the Group represents the

AR o
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amount arising from the reduction of share capital.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income from listed
investments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible assets
Amortisation of goodwill arising
on acquisitions of subsidiaries,
medical and dental practices
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, medical and dental practices
Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment
Allowance for inventories
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of unlisted investments
in securities
Gain on disposal of listed securities
Loss on disposal of medical and
dental practices

Operating cash inflow (outflow) before
working capital changes

Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and
other receivables

(Increase) decrease in amounts due
from related parties

Increase in trade and
other payables

Cash from operating activities
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

J
<

K & R 2

2005 2004

BT o

HKS HK$
(48,235,935) (25,152,611)
(60,483) (277,478)
(140,884) -

- 733,411

- 3,157,233
7,828,881 3,604,866
19,236,861 900,000
18,741,642 6,544,844
1,550,335 5,000,000
2,157,545 1,457,748
117,937 1,033,843
(2,400) -
(868,314) -

- 1,500,000
325,185 (1,498,144)
1,245,554 3,933,830
(2,569,716) 9,235,896
(4,134,256) 2,443,001
10,014,385 615,771
4,881,152 14,730,354
(873,780) (16,681)
(781,564) (1,260,428)
3,219,808 13,453,245

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BHE-_TZTRF=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of
intangible assets
Dividend received from associates
Increase in amounts due from associates
Proceeds from disposal of associates
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend received from listed
investments
Interest received
Proceeds from partial disposal
of a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of unlisted
investments in securities
Proceeds from disposal of
listed securities
Purchase of listed securities
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of interests in associates
Increase in amount due from
an investee companies
Acquisition of medical and dental
practices
Disposal of subsidiaries

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

B2 B B R A A

2005 2004

Mt 5 BT BT
Notes HK$ HK$
1,800,000 -

899,016 499,239

(262,181) (1,559,986)

250,001 51,464,489

206,009 -

140,884 -

60,483 277478

33,056 -

26,400 -

27,318,936 -
(26,450,622) -
24(b) & 32 (37,875,448) (13,528,609)
(8,102,676) (3,835,504)
(6,565,410) (15,130,011)
(189,842) (667,260)
34 - (950,000)
33 - (43,162)
(48,711,394) 16,526,674

9,
} Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLlDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2 -TTRF=H=1—HIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$ HK$
MEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
?"ﬁﬂxf FT i858 Proceeds from issue of shares - 23,285,000
TR ESFTSZIE  Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 19,000,000 -
%ﬁia%g New borrowings raised 16,412,735 19,994,033
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (9,296,712) (42,407,179)
RBTRMHEN Expenses paid in connection with
pd b3 the issue of shares (1,096,763) (655,530)
EGIENEIRRE O Dividend paid to minority shareholders
FRBRE of subsidiaries (225,050) (378,390)
(BE)MBARDE (Repayment of) advance from minority
e shareholders of subsidiaries (2,144,802) 53,246
BHRBRTEITOR D Decrease in pledged bank deposits - 30,000,000
ERAEHORE Repayment of obligation under finance lease - (1,596,457)
METHELEZ2HELFHE  NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 22,649,408 28,294,723
ReRBEEEEENA (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
(R 2) & CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,842,178) 58,274,642
FAzREREE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Z£EER AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 47,007,994 (11,266,648)
FRZESRESE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Z£EER AT END OF YEAR,
NRITHE B RE R E represented by bank balances and cash 24,165,816 47.007,994
e
B & H B ® B 2 A m@ Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

% #® o®k M O&E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_TTAF=A=1—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

—REH

ARAERBHBRMRIAERE
ERAR - ARARGETBHE R
P A R A R (B2 A7) B R &

N

M o

AAR T —EREERAR HEE
M@ a2 EE R M EESS ©

M AMmEst ER 2 E
ERE
—EEREF  EEUHAAGEG

TZHRHAAEETRESHER
FRMBGHRRER ([BEYHRRE
A1) (ATHBIHEBY B RRE
)  ZFER_ZTTRF—H—
Bl z&miaz @t BRER - AR
AUERERBEE_TSTERF=A=
T-HALEFEZMBHRERTPEALE
MEBVHRRER -

ARRBEERUENEBU K RRE
A - I HEE It F B B BRI E R
ZIEAREHARR K EEBRIB
RAZHEBREHFARNERKEKX
EoxRAWMT

=
'?/E

B OB OB R

R

>
oy

&

General

The Company is incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM Board”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out

in note 45.

Potential impact arising from
the recently issued
accounting standards

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants issued a number of new or revised
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS") and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
(herein together collectively referred to as "new
HKFRSs") which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2005. The Group
has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March,

2005.

The Group has considered these new HKFRSs and
identified a number of these HKFRSs that may have
a material effect on how the results of operations
and financial positions are prepared and presented

as described below:

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Potential impact arising from
the recently issued
accounting standards (continved)

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

HKFRS 3 requires goodwill acquired in a business
combination to be measured after initial recognition
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Therefore, the goodwill is not amortised and instead
must be tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Currently, the
Group amortises the goodwill capitalised on a straight

line basis over its useful economic life.

HKFRS 3 also requires negative goodwill to be
recognised in the profit or loss immediately on
acquisition. Currently, the Group does not have

negative goodwill.

The Group estimates that the adoption of HKFRS 3
in the annual period beginning on 1st April, 2005
in relation to the discontinued goodwill amortisation
would result in an increase in the net profit for the
year ending 31st March, 2006 of approximately
HK$6,912,000.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Potential impact arising from
the recently issued
accounting standards (continueq)

HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 requires all investments to
be reclassified into available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables. It also requires all
financial instruments issued by the Group should
be recognised at fair value. Currently, the convertible
bond issued by the Group is fully converted as at

balance sheet date.

In relation to other new HKFRSs, the Group does
not expect that the adoption will have a material
effect on how the results of operations and financial

position of the Group are prepared and presented.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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3. FEEIHEHXK 3. Significant accounting

policies

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention as modified for the
valuation of certain investments in securities, and in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting

policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate or
medical and dental practices at the date of

acquisition.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight-
line basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of an associate is included
within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwiill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries or medical
and dental practices is presented separately in the

balance sheet.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company's balance sheet at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the
Group's share of the net assets of the associates
plus the goodwill on acquisition, less any identified

impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Medical and dental consultation income is recognised

when the related services are rendered.
Management and administrative service fee income

in relation to provision of healthcare services is

recognised when services are rendered.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Licence fee income is recognised with reference to

the terms of the relevant agreements.

Sales of healthcare, pharmaceutical products and
surgical equipment are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Profit guaranteed income is recognised when the
Group's entitlement has been established with

reference to the terms of the relevant agreements.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the

rates applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment

have been established.

Other consultancy fee income is recognised when

the related services are rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation is provided to write
off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following

rates per annum:

Land Over the term
of the lease
Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements 3 years or over
the term of the

lease, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
Tools and equipment 10 — 33'/5%

In previous years, leasehold improvements were
depreciated over the term of the lease of six years.
With effect from 1st April, 2004, leasehold
improvements are to be depreciated over three
years, which reflects the Group's previous experience
of the useful lives of its assets. The change in
depreciation rate has increased the depreciation

charge for the year by approximately HK$9,812,000.

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

the income statement.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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3. FEEBHHEX@® 3. Significant accounting

policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the costs of acquisition
of (i) an exclusive right to produce and sell certain
health products in the People’'s Republic of China
(the "Production and Sale Right"); and (ii) an
exclusive right to operate certain number of franchise
shops in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the name of “Wai Yuen Tong" for a term of

five years (the “Franchise Right").

Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
and any identified impairment loss. The cost in
relation to the acquisition of Production and Sale
Right and the Franchise Right is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of ten years and

five years respectively.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-

date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investment securities, which are securities held for
an identified long-term strategic purpose, are
measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as
reduced by any impairment loss that is other than

temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or

loss for the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to

be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
loss is income

impairment recognised as

immediately.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the rates ruling on the dates of the
transactions or at the contracted settlement rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such
currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are included in net profit or loss for the

year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's overseas operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group's
translation reserve. Such transaction differences are
recognised as income or as expenses in the period

in which the operations is disposed of.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the

accounting profit.
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3. FEEBHHEX@® 3. Significant accounting

policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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FESHTEHE ®» 3.

Significant accounting

policies (continued)
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Operating leases

over the relevant leases term.
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EXRERTEEHR 4.

EEBDNEAE=HNEREEKRFIE
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Retirement benefits schemes

Turnover and segment
information

and is summarised as follows:

R ERRER Provision of healthcare and
7 BER 5 dental services

HERRBER R Sales of healthcare and pharmaceutical
S products

i 6 0 B Bt K2 B #2 [ & Sales of cardiology and peripheral
MHESMNRL F 1T & 2R

vascular related surgical equipment

B =H OB 2 KR & R 2

{

al

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged

to the income statement on a straight-line basis

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

are charged as an expenses as they fall due.

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net

amounts received and receivable from third parties

2005 2004

BT BT

HK$ HK$
113,317,654 100,275,330
15,911,464 9,441,890
50,306,819 =
179,535,937 109,717,220
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4. EEXFERTEER »® 4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)

RABER AEERBEBIR= For management purposes, the Group is currently

AREDE - DHIRBHBRERRER organised into three major operating divisions —

FEIRYS  HERBERRZERAR provision of healthcare and dental services, sales of

0 S I B A2 B AR B AR ST healthcare and pharmaceutical products and sales

#as o of cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical

equipment.

o R - REXEBE AR *  Provision of - Operations of the
BEERE RIBZH MALX healthcare and Group's medical and
SERE BERTERHEER dental services dental practices,
AR % RATH AR %5 A K #% provision of management

HIREEEPO]E and administrative
2 FFA] e services to private

medical and dental
practitioners and
licensing of the name

“Town Health Centre”.

s HE - HERBRER R % +  Sales of - Sales of healthcare and
R m BREESTER healthcare and pharmaceutical products
= & B & A AT M Rl Az pharmaceutical including traditional
B m = products Chinese medicine and

radioactive isotopes for

medical uses.

e HELH — MELR  BEEIER + Sales of — Sales of cardiology and
BREE BEHELEERE cardiology and peripheral vascular
MmEMRE BmMERBINEIFMN peripheral related surgical
SNEE T &ER vascular equipment to hospitals,
& related surgical medical institutions and

equipment medical practitioners.
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TURNOVER

RESULTS
Segment resuls
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs
Gain ([oss) on dilution and
disposal of associates
Share of resulfs of associates
&) Gain on partal disposel of
a subsidiary
Amortisation of goodil
arising on acquisitons
of associates
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill arising on
acquistions of associates
Allowances for amounts due
from associates

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss before minority
Interests
Minority interests

Net loss for the year

B OB 7B R

4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)
Business segments
RUBRRER HERR HELENRARNE
FHEH ERRER ERANFHES it
Sales of Sales of cardiology
Provision of healthcare and and peripheral
healthcare and pharmaceutical vascular related
dental services products surgical equipment Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
An A A A A A A BT
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
113,317,654 100275330 15,911,464 9441890 50,306,819 - 179,535,931 109717220
(38,830,673 (8606133) (4,442,853 (15715014)  (1,251,590) - (M5B8 (24321147
(710819 (640346)
(187564)  (1260426)
5104790 (46,592,377)
1,290,989 (4850,016)
33,056 =
(8765.277)  (6553,130)
(20,066,490)  (2,534686)
(1,898,658 -
(11325,089)  (86752,132)
(105553)  (517199)
(18,380,623)  (87269,285)
(5950067 (400,025)
(84,330,685  (87669,310)
9,
RA & w Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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EXERIBER @

EBxIE(E)

ASSETS
E Segment assels
HEEDFZER Interests i associates
ZE  Unallocated assets

BEE Total assets

8f LIABILITEES

AEak Segment libilfes

FAEEE  Unallocated liabilftes

a8k Tota libiltes

EEH OTHER INFORMATION

LS Capttal expenditure

W% BER  Depreciation and amortisation
FECRE  of property, plant end
Rk equipment

BENENED  Amorisaton of goodwil aiing
A EERTE  on acquisitions of subsidiaries

DEFEEE  medal and dental practces
BEEVEE  Amorisaion of infangible assefs
S TEEEZ Impaiment loss recognised in

BEBE:  respectof

-EVEE - inangble assels

-WEHE - goodwil aising on

DEBE  acquisiions of subsidiares,
RFEDE  medical and dentdl
G2 practices

4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)

RURERER
FEH
Provision of
healthcare and
dental services
2005 2004
B AT
HK$ HKS
50,603,950 111,615,541
18,671,458 10,465,009
7,009,077 18,339,240
14,575,358 5357435
4,231,204 2,750,392
15,643,743 900,000

Business segments (continued)

HERR
EnkEm
Sales of
healthcare and
pharmaceutical
products
2005 2004
A B
HKS HKS
12,9793 11151308
637,886 1599315
94,994 298,968
2,352,048 1,187409
929,660 854 474
- 133410
= 3151233

HELENRBRNE
ERANTHER
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral
vascular related
surgical equipment
2005 2004
En B
HKS HKS
45,639,167 S
12,1593 -
2,129,580 =
1,814,236 =
2,668,017 =
3,593,118 =

2005
AT
HK$

119,171,020
24,208,126
33,908,750

177,287,896

31,464,267
10,440,399

41,904,666

9,233,651

18,741,642

7828,881

19,236,861

it

Total
2004
BT
HKS

122,766,849
47448159
49,511,344

219,726,352

12,064,324
13,891,641

25,955,965

18,638,208

6,544,844

3,604,866
733410

5157233

900,000

J
<

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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(ZE-TTRF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

4. EEXFERDTEER ® 4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)

WESE Geographical segments

REBZEBURBTBERPEARHL The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong
ME ([RE]) - IREERERERTE and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
REEEERBERRER 2 EKT Provision of healthcare and dental services and sales
REBET - HELEBREERNE of healthcare and pharmaceutical products are
HEEIMNELF il E eSS 2 EB AR B K& carried out in Hong Kong. Sales of cardiology and
EEET - peripheral vascular related surgical equipment are

carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong.

AT B AR B iR @ 5 9 5 2 & The following provides an analysis of the Group's
XESM (TwmER,/ REBIRM) turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the

origin of the goods/services:

EEE LREBBOE
Contributions to loss
Turnover from operations
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BB Hong Kong 135,112,625 109,717220 (55,551,279) (25,152,611)
H PRC 44,423,312 - 7,315,344 -

179,535,937 109,717,220 (48,235,935) (25,152,611)

B f B B 2B R A R 2 Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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4. EEXFERTEER »® 4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)

wEDHE (E) Geographical segments (continued)

NTREEEMEMRON ZHEE The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
EZREBEARDE  BEREHZ of segment assets and additions to property, plant
NE and equipment, analysed by geographical area in

which the assets are located:

THEEEZREE EARMX
Carrying amount of
segment assets Capital expenditure
R=A=+-H BE=ZA=1t-HLHFE
For the year ended
At 31st March, 31st March,
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
575 Hong Kong 141,184,873 219,072,445 71,992,856 18,638,208
A PRC 34,967,640 = 1,240,795 =

176,152,513 219,072,445 9,233,651 18,638,208

B f B B 2B R A R 2 Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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(ZE-TTRF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

RERITHERZFEUWA Interest income from bank deposits
REEmES 2B U A Dividend income from listed securities

KETBRTELHMZ

S M AR & A
HE EmREHFz W
HEFLETESRRE

Z W as
FEEWA

\mllw%ﬁi

\

METVEECHERLZ
(B B 18

HEmBERTED R
ZEE

5. Other operating income

Profit guaranteed income from

Gain on disposal of listed securities

Gain on disposal of unlisted

investments in securities

Sundry income

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of medical and

dental practices

2005 2004
BT BT
HK$ HK$
60,483 277,478
140,884 =
medical and dental practices - 350,000
868,314 =
2,400 =
1,725,398 1,409,873
2,797,479 2,037,351
6. Other operating expenses
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$ HK$
- 3,157,233
- 1,500,000
- 4,657,233

{

=
ot
=il
>
Il
L
&4
R

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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7. REEE

@R BB B T
HE R E -

BITAA

—E=EHMMEI0)

—HAfh B TR

—Hfb 8B TRIKEF

EE TN

—EHE

ZBED B &
ME - BERREZ
e R#EH
BBV EE
(BIETTER B 32)
BHEWENB AR
e KT B2
mrEEE (3
TR )
RIZIR BB
FEEE
HEME - BE M
& B 1R

7. Loss from operations

Loss from operations has been arrived

at after charging:

Staff costs
— Directors’ remuneration (note 10)
— Other staff costs
— Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions

— Severance payment

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets (included
in administrative expenses)

Amortisation of goodwill arising on
acquisitions of subsidiaries, medical
and dental practices (included in
administrative expenses)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Allowance for inventories

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

{

=
ot
=il
]
Il
L
&%
R

2005 2004

i BT

HK$ HK$
16,435,430 8,782,827
61,162,597 45,385,248
1,028,572 1,027,269
12,600 173,573
78,639,199 55,368,917
973,600 575,000
18,741,642 6,544,844
- 733,411
7,828,881 3,604,866
2,157,545 1,457,748
1,550,335 5,000,000
117,937 1,033,843

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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(ZE-TTRF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

8. REKA 8. Finance costs
2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
IATRIERZHE : Interest on:

—ARAIFRNEH — Bank borrowings wholly repayable
BEZRITEE within five years 665,413 476,109

—BAR—FRNEH — Other borrowings wholly repayable
BEzHEMEE within one year - 269,390
—RITEX — Bank overdraft 31,740 514,929
— AR E — Convertible bond 90,411 -~
787,564 1,260,428

B f B B 2B R A R 2 Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IZ-TTAF=FA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

BERHEBE AW
= (E518)
BHE_TTRE-A=+—RALFE
2 FREE - B FE()BA 250,000 7T 2 (X
BHEASERTEESERAAZ
2 E25%Em 2 BB - (A VETZ
RELEXAEERBRERAAZZ
2500w 2 Wk - R(iEHRERE
VIRFBERAR ([EEER]) RO R
—TEEMEANATN\BEBRZAIE
R TR EE RN e A 7.8% w2
Wk - BAFIECHRHE18 -

HE-_ZTWNE=-A=1+—HLEE
2 3REE - BIHE(1)1A 46,965,000/ T 2
RE(EHNREARAX) HEXREER
LT EHEEZERBER DA ([ TEE
Bl) 2 2829840 2 BE - &
(i) A 4,500,000 7t 2 (R B I & A &
BRI ERBEMERAR 22 E
49% 1 % 2 18 o

Gain (loss) on dilution and
disposal of associates

The amounts for the year ended 31st March, 2005
comprised (i) the loss on disposal of the Group's
entire 25% interest in Fortune Way Trading Limited
at the consideration of HK$250,000; (ii) the gain
on disposal of its entire 25% interest in Smart
Leading Limited at the consideration of HK$1; and
(iii) the gain on dilution of 7.8% interest in
Plasmagene Biosciences Limited (“Plasmagene”)
upon the listing of Plasmagene’s shares on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 18th June, 2004.

Details of which are set out in note 18.

The amounts for the year ended 31st March, 2004
comprised (i) the loss on disposal of the Group's
entire 29.84% interest in Wai Yuen Tong Medicine
Holdings Limited (“WYT Holdings"”) at the
consideration of approximately HK$46,965,000 (net
of related expenses); and (ii) the loss on disposal
of its entire 49% interest in Health Dental Surgery

Limited at the consideration of HK$4,500,000.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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BE

TTRF =R =+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

10. EEMHEREENE 10.

FARNARBREST M REN

Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to

T directors of the Company during the year are as
follows:
2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
EFWe Directors' fees:
—BMITES — Executive 3,918,000 360,000
—BUEBITES — Independent non-executive 113,000 100,000
4,031,000 460,000
HITESUAREE Other emoluments of executive directors
EPHRBEZHD received in the capacity as full-time
WH 2 Eth & : medical practitioners of the Group:
—BEAX¥HE - HAith — Basic salaries, other allowances and
B R B YA & benefits in kind 4,875,158 3,244,357
— RIFIEL — Performance bonus 7,505,272 5,054,470
— RIREFI 5T 2 — Retirement benefits scheme
K contributions 24,000 24,000
12,404,430 8,322,827
EEMenE Total directors’ emoluments 16,435,430 8,782,827

FRA AKESEANEZNHME -
ERMAIRIMAR KB 2 BE 3k
Bl o WiE  UERESNFAREML
] B & -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HE-_TTRAF=A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

10. Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

(continued)

10. EEMEREENS »

REZANBEMEBED N 2 EFM

An analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of

W directors and emolument range is as follows:
2005 2004
EE=¥A EEHHE
Number of Number of
directors directors
WITES Executive directors
— = % 1,000,000/ 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 2
— 1,500,001 L2 - HK$1,500,001 to
2,000,000/ J© HK$2,000,000 - 1
—2,500,001/ L= - HK$2,500,001 to
3,000,000/ J© HK$3,000,000 1 —~
— 3,000,001/ L& - HK$3,000,001 to
3,500,0007% 7T HK$3,500,000 1 -
—6,000,001 8L 2 — HK$6,000,001 to
6,500,000 7T HK$6,500,000 - 1
—9,000,001 B L= — HK$9,000,001 to
9,500,000/ J© HK$9,500,000 1 -~
BIUENITES Independent non-executive directors
— = % 1,000,000/ 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2
7 6

58 R 2

{
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HE-_TTAF=A=1—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

10. EEMEREENS »

ERMITEERIBILIFAITES 2 M

TEHEBEOT

HITEEA
MITESB
HITESC
HITESD
BUIFRTTEERA
B IEMITEEB
B IEMTESRC

(continued)

10. Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

Details of emoluments of individual executive and

independent non-executive directors are set out as

below:

Executive director A
Executive director B
Executive director C
Executive director D
Independent non-executive director A
Independent non-executive director B

Independent non-executive director C

K & R 2

{

al

2005 2004

BT BT

HKS$ HK$
9,025,158 6,354,357
3,379,272 1,968,470
918,000 180,000
3,000,000 180,000
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
13,000 N/AA i
16,435,430 8,782,827

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HE-_ZTTRH=F=1—BILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

1. EEM £ 11. Employees’ emoluments
hEGESHMALH  HPEmE (ZF The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
ZMF : WB) RARAINITES - H individuals included two (2004: two) executive
MeEHN EXMFI0- 8T =4 directors of the Company, whose emoluments are

ZTEMF  ZR) & TMALTZ included in note 10 above. The aggregate
Bz mT emoluments of the remaining three (2004: three)

highest paid individuals are as follows:

2005 2004

BT BT

HK$ HK$

e & HMERL Salaries and other allowances 2,160,000 3,685,430

RIRIEAL Performance bonus 12,533,405 4,254,366

RARAE A ET &AL 5K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 36,000 36,000

14,729,405 7,975,796

BRT=%(ZTZMF : =ZR) RaH The emoluments of the remaining three (2004:

AT ZMEN FATEHE : three) highest paid individuals were within the
following bands:

2005 2004

BE A" BE AB

Number of Number of

employees employees

1,500,001 7t £ 2,000,000/ 7t HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 2

3,000,001,8 7 £ 3,500,000/ 7 HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 =

4,000,0017% 7T £ 4,500,000/ 7 HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 1

7,000,0017% 7T £ 7,500,000/%8 7t HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 =

3 3

FRN - AEEIWER L LK H A During the year, no emoluments were paid by the

TXRME - ERMAKRMARE Group to the five highest paid individuals, as an

B RSB 2 fE - inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

J
o

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HE-_TTAF=A=1—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

12. B1E 12. Taxation
2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
X B The charge comprises:
—AREEEG — Hong Kong Profits Tax attributable
BBMEH to the Group 393,816 203,000
—HEERA] — Share of taxation attributable
I8 to associates 583,961 256,986
977,777 459,986
TFBBEER Overprovision in prior year (1,512) -~
EIEFLTE (T 7#28) ©  Deferred tax (note 28):
—AREE — Current year 79,269 57,167
1,055,534 517,153
ERMNEHRTIAFE 2 hat R H Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004:
MIZ17.5% (ZZFZME : 17.5%) 5F 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
"o year.
RIETIE 2 S IFE M 528 © Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 28.

9,
B f B B 2B R & B 24 7 m%wn Health International Holdings Company Limited
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HE-_ZTTRH=F=1—BILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

12. $IE )
4 9478 B % AT B2 UK 34 35 BT A 1R

12. Taxation (continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the

BRAAT - loss per the income statement as follows:
2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
B i Bl &5 1R Loss before taxation (77,325,089)  (86,752,132)

AR S E R 17.5%  Tax at the domestic income
—ZETPOF : 17.5%)  tax rate of 17.5%

FTEZBIE (2004: 17.5%) (13,531,890) (15,181,623)
B 7E JE AR Bt i A B Tax effect of expenses that are not

SR BB 2 B deductible in determining

M2 taxable profit 12,431,693 12,878,213
& JF JE AR 0% A B Tax effect of income that are not

BRRTU AL taxable in determining

M T E taxable profit (172,159) (173,980)
AERBIABEZ Tax effect of tax losses not

% 2 recognised 4,068,948 1,993,198
EREE R R ERZ Tax effect of share of results

M & of associates (358,038) 1,105,739
BERAEANARER Utilisation of tax losses not previously

i 18 &5 18 recognised (1,381,508) (104,394)
TFEBBEER Overprovision in prior year (1,512) -
AREFHIAE SN Tax expense for the year 1,055,534 517,153

0
B R B B 2 B B R 2 7 w Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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185

BREE
BREANEBEEIDBRBEFEEBFED
84,331,000 T (ZEZE M F :
87,669,000 7T) R ENE BITRH 2
INEF5%01,326,342,601 % (ZZFZ
PU4F : 976,138,967%) 5F & -

el 3 28T £ A 28 ) B M TR R 3 34

AR ES TSRS REERD -
AT EZINBE_ZETHFR_-ZF
EME=A=+—ALFE SRS
EEBHH -

13. Loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the net loss for the year of approximately
HK$84,331,000 (2004: HK$87,669,000) and on the
weighted average number of 1,326,342,601 (2004:
976,138,967) shares in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share has not
been presented for the year ended 31st March,
2005 and 2004 because the assumed exercise of
the Company’s share options and the assumed
conversion of the convertible bond would result in

a decrease in loss per share.

9,
m Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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RZZEMEMA-A
AE

REHBAT

e

R-BZRF=R
=t+—H

FERES

RZEENEMA-A
EESH
HEBHH

14. % - BERRE

THE GROUP

cost

At Tst Aprl, 2004
Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposals

At 31st March,
2005

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION

At Tt April, 2004

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31st March,
2005

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March,
2005

At 31st March,
2004

14. Property, plant and

equipment

t#RET HENEEE GRREE RE IAR#%E fit

Furniture Tools

Land and Leasehold and Motor and
buildings  improvements fixtures vehicle  equipment Total
B BT BT BT B BT
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$
9,155,229 24,228,263 462,048 192,492 17714477 51,752,509
4.403,690 699,861 251,365 54,100 2,693,660 8,102,676
- - 54,804 - 1,076,171 1,130,975
- (669,.255) (349474) - (376384)  (1395,113)
13,558,919 24,258 869 418,743 246,592 21,107924 59,591,047
276,182 9,989,744 190,618 92,300 5,531,253 16,080,697
258,066 13,854,262 151,708 42,225 4435381 18,741,642
- (467241) (278211) - (325715)  (1,071,167)
534 848 23,376,165 64,115 134525 9,640,919 33,151,172
13,024,071 882,104 354,628 112,067 11,467,005 25,839,875
8,878,447 14,238,519 271,430 100,192 12,183,224 35,671,812

R-_BEERER_ZTTNME=/=+
—B AEEERBZTHRIEFH
AR ERE AR -

oz kR A

B
S
o)

&

At 31st March, 2005 and 2004, the land and

buildings of the Group are held under medium term

leases in Hong Kong.

J
<
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HE-_TTAF=A=1—HBIFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

15. BEEE 15. Intangible assets
REREEERN BEEA =)
Production
and Franchise
Sale Right Right Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HKS
XEE THE GROUP
BA COST
RZZEZENFMA—H At 1st April, 2004 8,088,600 450,000 8,538,600
HE Disposal (8,088,600) = (8,088,600)
R-_ZFRF=A=1+—H At 31st March, 2005 - 450,000 450,000
BHERRE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R-ZZNENA—H At 1st April, 2004 6,288,600 450,000 6,738,600
6 i 85 Eliminated on disposal (6,288,600) - (6,288,600)
RZEERFE=FA=1+—H8 At 31st March, 2005 - 450,000 450,000
IREFE NET BOOK VALUES

R-ZEZRE=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005 = - -

RZZTMNE=A=+—H At 31st March, 2004 1,800,000 = 1,800,000

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZTTRH=F=1—BILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

16. &
A5H THE GROUP
A COST
RZZZWENA—H At Tst April, 2004
YoiE Acquisitions

R-ZTAF=HA=+—H

BERAE
IMPAIRMENT

At Tst April, 2004

Charge for the year

R-ZZZTMFEMA—H
FRX
EERRERR

R-_ZEZRF=A=F+—H

REFE NET BOOK VALUES

At 31st March, 2005

AMORTISATION AND

At 31st March, 2005

R-ZZZTHF=F=+—H8 At 31st March, 2005

R-ZZMFE=F=+—H At 31st March, 2004

MERANES Y -

RBE_TTRAF=-A=+—HILF
ERA ﬁmﬁ/\gﬁ‘llzfﬁ/)q| R /NE=T -3
EEEHAEEZNBARNURAE
MABDHZEEE  WE2HMZA
U B &8 JY R B 4% 2 BRIR R+ & 2 h
AR BEEREEBET - AEY
19,237,000t (ZEZE M F :
900,000/ 7T) 2 R BEBIEE ERIFE

RERE WA R AR ©

 BE OB B

i3

16.

Impairment loss recognised

Goodwill

il PN EERFNDM Gl

Medical and
Subsidiaries dental practices Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
37,207,039 14,786,180 51,993,219
26,680,169 = 26,680,169
63,887,208 14,786,180 78,673,388
2,955,453 4,467,947 7,423,400
6,398,369 1,430,512 7,828,881
14,897,071 4,339,790 19,236,861
24,250,893 10,238,249 34,489,142
39,636,315 4,547,931 44,184,246
34,251,586 10,318,233 44,569,819

The goodwill is amortised over a period ranging
from 5 to 10 years.

During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the
directors of the Company reviewed the carrying value
of the Group's subsidiaries and medical and dental
practices in view of the current economic conditions.
The recoverable amounts of these practices are
determined with reference to the estimated future
cash flows using a discount rate of 4%. Impairment
loss of approximately HK$19,237,000 (2004:
HK$900,000) was identified and charged to the
consolidated income statement.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

% #® o®k M O&E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE

TTRF =R =+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

17.

il NGRS
W — 1 B JB 2 R RRIE

LML, - AR
& W P /B8 2 B 3R 0R

o BRI EER

JRE W — [ Bt /B8 1t R) R IR

JE U B /B A R] 5K IH 231,484,206/ 7T
(ZZ T[4 : 204,069,95487T) Jh 4
i B REETERD -  BEAK
BEHERKERART T ZMEARNE
B WIEEREIER o

KRB EERE  ERETHWEBAA
—HEAKEBEBRRTMMR - AR
ARKMBRARIERE R EKRE AR Z
FRIE Z BB E1E#778,189,0008 T (=
TZPULE : 58,588,000/ 7T) B FERA
EE °

B EXCPratish - pEARHT B R R SRIA TS
BEM RERARBERERE -

ITEMBRARR-_ZETRF=A=T1
—HZFHAEMENHELS -

Amount due from a subsidiary

17. Interests in subsidiaries/

amount due from a subsidiary

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Less: impairment loss recognised

2005 2004

& T S TT

HKS$ HK$

28,537,379 28,537,379

231,484,206 204,069,954

260,021,585 232,607,333

(136,776,822)  (58,587,587)

123,244,763 174,019,746

13,267,707 14,217,707

The amounts due from subsidiaries of

HK$231,484,206 (2004: HK$204,069,954) are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The amounts will not be repayable within
twelve months from the balance sheet date and are
therefore shown as non-current.

The Directors of the Company consider that in light
of the recurring operating losses of certain
subsidiaries and the current market conditions,
impairment losses of approximately HK$78,189,000
(2004: HK$58,588,000) in
Company's interests in subsidiaries and amounts

respect of the
due from subsidiaries have been recognised.

Other than as mentioned above, the amount due
from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

are repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2005
are set out in note 45.

9,
m Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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18. MEEZE N 7] Z’I‘EE/@ 18. Interests in associates/
W B = B) R IE amounts due from associates
AEE AR F
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT BT B BT
HK$ HKS HKS$ HK$
el AN Share of net assets
BEFE of associates:
-k ~ Listed 7,625,366 = - -
—3Em ~ Unlisted 5,895,400 3,173,757 - =
W BB & N EIFT/S  Goodwill arising on acquisition
N EE) of associates (Note) 7,421,213 39,745,825 - =
20,941,979 42.919,582 - -
[EUgBE %A B FIE  Amounts due from associates 8,564,805 7928,577 232,744 216,241
W EU—REEE  Less: Allowance for amount
AR FIER due from an associate (5,298,658) (3,400,000) - -
3,266,147 4,528,577 232,744 216,241
24,208,126 47,448,159 232,744 216,241

ETROREER  Market value of listed shares
ZTfE at the balance sheet date

17,098,979 =

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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W E A

FRFBER-_ZZRAFR_ZTFTNF
A=t BRAREEZRELIEE
HR 2B REEEERY - EFR
o BRFREBEANG
BWEMESERBIAE -

NEE

DS
MM A—H
WHE P15

R=R=+—H

BEXRE
MM A—H
FEXH

B

NCILEE €

R=R=+—H

fREE

R=R=+—H

BB B &5 18
& K #EE R &

Bl

S

18. R & NTE 2R FE 18.
B FIE ()

+

WEBLERARMSEE

E‘%

(continued)

HHEF—F

Note:

COST
At 1st April
Arising on acquisitions

Eliminated on disposals

At 31st March

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1st April

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

Eliminated on disposals and dilution
of an associate

At 31st March

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31st March

K & R 2

{

al

Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

All the above amounts outstanding at 31st March,
2005 and 2004 are unsecured,

have no fixed repayment terms. The amounts will

interest-free and

not be repayable within one year from the balance
sheet date and are shown as non-current.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of associates

A%EE
THE GROUP

2005 2004
BT BT
HK$ HK$
49,840,958 117,404,978
2,580,160 13,613,909
(2,511,777)  (81,177,929)
49,909,341 49,840,958
10,095,133 5,066,616
8,765,277 6,553,130
24,066,490 2,534,688
(438,772) (4,059,301)
42,488,128 10,095,133
7,421,213 39,745,825

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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18. REA & AT 2% M 18. Interests in associates/

W Bk & Y B FE () amounts due from associates
(continued)

WS ARMGEEHERNTEE T The goodwill arising on acquisitions of associates

F2AbFHAIE B FHIE - was amortised over the estimated useful life ranging

from 5 to 10 years.

REE-_TETERAF=_A=+—HIHF During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the
g ERBRIKERRL  ARAES directors of the Company reviewed the carrying value
EEMHAEEBE AR ZREE - It of the Group's associates in view of the current
FHEE N Al AT YL B KRB T ER A 4% .2 economic conditions. The recoverable amounts of
BB XRFEALGFREEEREME these associates are determined with reference to
o Bt - E#RAEIX24,066,000 the estimated future cash flows using a discount
BT (ZZZFMEE ¢ 2,535,00087T) 2 rate of 4%. Accordingly, impairment loss of
WEEER  WREeWERANR - approximately HK$24,066,000 (2004:

HK$2,535,000) was identified and charged to the

consolidated income statement.

B f B B 2B R A R 2 Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

{
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18.

i AE s FE

BEn
3 NN

=

AEFEZIEBRERRNR_TTHF

I8 (#)

ZA=+t—BZFAEHRMT :

DAER

L3 1

Form of

Name of company business structure

EEER AT & B L
Advance Bond Limited Incorporated
BETRRRAERRDA FE At K 3z
Bess Dental Services Limited Incorporated
MERRERAR FE At K 3z

Long Faith International Limited  Incorporated

HeRomES (BE)
BRERT

Next Dimension Advertising
(H.K.) Limited

it fif Ak 32

Incorporated

72 R A R

18. Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

(continued)

Details of the Group's principal associates at 31st

March, 2005 are as follows:

AARBEREZ
ERTRAEE
o 1R B A 3t B Z Akt fil TEEH
Attributable
proportion of
nominal value

of issued capital

Place of indirectly held by
incorporation the Company Principal activities
0 49% EERERERBDM
Hong Kong Operation of medical

clinics in Hong Kong

A 49% AAEREEREA
RETERERS
Hong Kong Provision of dental card

services to dental

card holders

BiE 40% EEREREMBYM
Hong Kong Operations of a medical

clinic in Hong Kong

Bt 40% REEE - BE
BER
Hong Kong Provision of promotion,

advertising and artwork

production

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

{

>
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18.

=
&
e

ENR 2w e

W%éﬁ?mﬁﬁ)

RAER

Name of company

ZREGRBERAT
NSA Life Sciences Limited

ZRERERDA
NSA Far East Limited

Pherson Limited

L ER (fa)
Plasmagene (Note)

BEEBRERA A
Union Crown International

Limited

Erph—REE
JFA Town Health Limited

EREARARA

FEERER

Form of

business structure

&t fif Ak 32

Incorporated

&t fif Ak 32

Incorporated
BRI
Incorporated
BRI

Incorporated

&M Ak SZ

Incorporated

it fif Ak 32

Incorporated

58 R 2

18. Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

(continued)
AAEAHEESEZ
ERTRAEE
o M0 A S 3t B Z AL EE Bl
Attributable

Place of

incorporation

30
Hong Kong

A
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

MEES
Cayman

Islands

BB
Hong Kong

A
Hong Kong

{

al

proportion of

nominal value

of issued capital

indirectly held by

the Company

49%

49%

33%

20.93%

25%

50%

IREHR

Principal activities

RERR

Investment holding

2 HIREE M@
Distribution of healthcare

products

MEEE

Property investments

RUEED B RT
Provision of medical

diagnostic services

REEBDERS
Provision of medical

diagnostic services

BRD A BRRS
Tendering for corporate

medical services

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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BE

18.

RAER

Name of company

REBRAH
Silver Ascot Limited

ERGBXBTLERAT

Slimone Company Limited

MG (M) BRAF

Smart Vision (Asia) Limited

BEERAH
Star Shine Limited

RAlZER I

4
%%ﬁjmﬁﬁ)

FEEREA

Form of

business structure

it fif Ak 32

Incorporated

E 1t B 32

Incorporated

&M Ak 2

Incorporated

M Ak 32

Incorporated

Interests in associates/

amounts due from associates

18.
(continued)

ARAHERELZ
ERTRAEE
of B 32 3t B 2 Al
Attributable
proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
Place of indirectly held by
incorporation the Company
Big 33.33%

Hong Kong
B 30%

Hong Kong
B 49%

Hong Kong
Bt 49%

Hong Kong

{

>
al
L
&4
R

IREHR

Principal activities

EREBREAEDM
Operation of a medical

clinic in Hong Kong

RUEZARERE RSB
Provision of beauty and

skin care services

RIEERRERES
Ret LA RS
Provision of photographic
design and related
services for new-born
babies

BEETHXAEmM
Trading in teeth

whitening products

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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18. R E &

Tl Z*EE/@
A IE &)

1

W Bt

HizF - THERZROHR_ZZTWEFRA
TNBIEBRZFTEIZER T o A%
EREmRER ESEZ AR LW
1% F728.47%}E BN # S8 £ 20.67% °
WIER 2K EE#ERED
5,288,000/ 7T I B 5T A 45 & W &=
% o

EERR LABERRHAKEE
?

BMAEEREARE BEFARR-
FIE MBS R R 2 BRI EHERB
RILE -

18.

Interests in associates/

amounts due from associates

(continued)

Note:

of the Stock Exchange on 18th June, 2004 and
the Group’s interest in Plasmagene has been
immediately diluted from 28.47% to 20.67% upon
its listing. The completion of this transaction
resulted in a gain on dilution of approximately

HK$5,288,000 credited to the consolidated income

statement.

In the opinion of the directors, the above associates
have a significant effect on the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other associates would,

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

Plasmagene has listed its shares on the GEM Board
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19. BHERE 19. Investments in securities
rEE
THE GROUP

2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
FEET - AR Unlisted, at cost 4,413,142 4,437,481
B EERBERETE  Less: Impairment loss recognised (755,190) (755,529)
3,657,952 3,681,952
T REAHZREE®SEA 1,999,000 The carrying value of unlisted securities included an
BIL  BREKE R A A 76.41%7H amount of approximately HK$1,999,000 representing
oo RARIRNEBTMAL - FIR 76.41% interest in Wisesure Limited, a company
HEERBZEL -REBE_TTX incorporated in Hong Kong and is engaged in

FZA=+—BHLEFER XEBEIA
HERMABARRARZIRRERN - B
R RO FRERERE  BW
—EBYFE=ZTZEERA - Bt
AEERMRBERARZEMERD
EFOBERANBHFZRE -

provision of medical consultation services. During
the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group
exchanged its right of shareholders, including the
right to control, profit sharing rights and voting right,
of Wisesure Limited, for a fixed income from an
independent third party. Accordingly, the Group's
entire interest in Wisesure Limited was reclassified

as investment in securities.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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20. EREIRE LT

a’A

20.

Amounts due from investees
companies

REE
THE GROUP

2005 2004

BT 7S TC

HK$ HK$

FE U 4 5 & A EFK B Amounts due from investees companies 1,213,267 1,151,769
A FEUW R E A Less: Allowance for amounts due

RIE e from investees companies (347,565) (475,909)

865,702 675,860

1,2132678 £ (Z T WM F
1,151,769/ 70) 2 FEU#E 1% & 1A Bl K
BIVEERT REREBRTERS -
EEREBEREE BRI =@

WER - RIEFERBIEE -

RAREERA  ERBITHR &
Yo #% 2 & A Rl 5RIA 2 B 49348,000
BIL(ZEZT N : 476,00087T) B
R AR

The amounts due from investees companies of
HK$1,213,267 (2004: HK$1,151,769) are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The amounts will not be repayable within
twelve months from the balance sheet date and are

therefore shown as non-current.

The directors of the Company consider that in light
of the current market conditions, allowance of
approximately HK$348,000 (2004: HK$476,000) in
respect of the amounts due from investees

companies have been recognised.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

% #® o®k M O&E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TTRF =R =+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

21. Inventories

Pharmaceutical supplies

Traditional Chinese medicine

Healthcare equipments

Dental materials and supplies

EEBRLZE

O BB K B8 M E
BB FME

Isotope for medical uses
Cardiology and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

REH

THE GROUP
2005 2004
i BT
HK$ HK$
2,026,664 2,128,319
- 206,278
- 863,579
600,660 604,691
199,183 89,354
236,348 373,457
5,721,136 =
8,783,991 4,265,678

FIBFEHRK AT -

i«’

al
{&—

&

"<

All inventories are stated at cost.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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22. EWERFA K H b FE Yt &KX

15

22. Trade and other receivables

AEE NN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2005 2004 2005 2004
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
FEWBR R (Mt 2ta) Trade receivables (note a) 15,408,913 6,472,179 - =
& (Kizb) Deposits (note b) 4,319,307 9,272,788 - 1,000,000
HihE Y B (Hf5Fc)  Other receivables (note c) 5,272,258 2,090,385 1,658,088 180,012
BN HIE (Kfatd) Prepayments (note d) 2,102,922 2,906,670 318,300 206,670
27,103,400 20,742,022 1,976,388 1,386,682

Hrat Notes:
a. REBEGETHESEFPAATHEES a. The Group allows its trade customers with an

BE+HRZFEEES - REER
Z IR ERE AT AT

average credit period of 60 days to 240 days. The

aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance

sheet date is as follow:

rEE
THE GROUP

2005 2004

BT BT

HKS$ HK$

0—60H 0 — 60 days 9,482,209 3,917,823
61H —120H 61 — 120 days 3,439,340 2,375,696
121H — 180H 121 — 180 days 2,884,798 1,230,339
181H —240H 181 — 240 days 1,335,794 216,028
241H —360H 241 — 360 days 424,317 190,041
17,566,458 7,929,927
BT REIREME  Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (2,157,545) (1,457,748)
15,408,913 6,472,179

B OB 2 R & B 2

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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22.

W iR R E

ftb FE 1 3K

] (#®)
Kiax - (48)
b. & 813,733,000 T2 HHE K

ARASEERS -

RZZFEEWNF=A=+—8H ' BR
FTEEERSEERNEEETREE
& B 114,402,000/ TT °

H b JE USRI 845 1,411,000 7T

B FESAEREGBE IR -

RZZTZEWNFEF=RA=+—H ' kB
B2 M2 s MARE B WK

= A7

350,000/ 7T °

%

\ZZEZMFE=/A=+—H %K
X B R AR R R
RO ERMHEAREEN Z AR
[B] 78 {5 7 TH 2,700,000/ 7T ° A #
BNREERBEEZE-_ZTRE=A
=+—BHIEFEAEZEE

£

9,”>

 Bm B B

B2

22. Trade and other receivables

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

Included in deposits are HK$3,733,000 paid in

relation to the rental and utilities deposits.

As at 31st March, 2004, there was HK$4,402,000
paid in relation to the promotion and advertising

of the Group's healthcare products in the PRC.

Included in other receivables are HK$1,411,000
paid in relation to the proceed from sale of listed
securities. As at 31st March, 2004, there was
HK$350,000 in respect of profit guarantee

receivables from medical practices.

As at 31st March, 2004, there was HK$2,700,000
refundable prepayment paid in relation to the
provision of consultation services for the Group's
establishment of Town Health Centre in the
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The prepayment
was fully refunded during the year ended 31st
March, 2005.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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23. EREBEALRE

23. Amounts due from related

parties

FREAKEZ
FEE BRENE
Maximum amount
outstanding
during
THE GROUP the year

2005 2004
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HKS

Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung &

Associates (A7 i#a) Associates (note a) 3,603,522 2,422,516 3,603,522
Qrigin Limited (A7 #£b) Qrigin Limited (note b) 182,939 179,428 182,983
BEEEERAR (Atc)  Weissford Development Ltd. (note c) 480,000 607,205 995,378
Chan Kin Ho, Bosco (Afz£d)  Chan Kin Ho, Bosco (note d) 435,972 = 435972
Cheng Ping Fai, Daniel (#7z#d) Cheng Ping Fai, Daniel (note d) 435,972 - 435,972
Helix Overseas Holdings Helix Overseas Holdings Limited

Limited (7 ite) (note ¢) 1,215,000 - 1,215,000
Kingdom Hill Limited (ff##e) ~ Kingdom Hill Limited (note e) 990,000 - 990,000

1,343,405 3,209,149

Wi -

©)

()

©

(d)

O

9,
ﬁ%@]ﬂ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂm

Notes:
Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates,Z. (a)
ERABRAEEBZEER A -
AR EEZERRE o (b)
BEETELE BoELEREER (0
EERZAREFUIRETHERE
=i o
RRARZIEZENEB A A 0T EE (d)
(ZR)BR AR ZRE -
KRARIZIEZENB AR BEER (e)

MEREEERAT ([RESFER
1) ZBR o

The partners of Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates
are employee-doctors of the Group.

A substantial shareholder of the Company.

A company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, Mr. Cho
Kam Luk and Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin are directors
and have beneficial interests.

A shareholder of the Company’s non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Pacific Medical (Holding) Company
Limited.

A shareholder of the Company’s non-wholly owned
subsidiary, First Oriental Medical Technology Group
Limited (“First Oriental”).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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24.

FERTBR X (fi7ta) Trade payables (note a)
H {308 (Bfa#b)  Other payables (note b)
i ER Accruals

REERZ BN ERREKER DTN

T~

0—60H
618 — 1208
1218 —2408
240H M k£

0 — 60 days
61 — 120 days
121 — 240 days

Over 240 days

K & R 2

FEAERMRREMENTKIE 24. Trade and other payables

rEHE AR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
12,945,416 2,397,681 - -
514,645 14,035,155 - 105,758
19,811,642 5,928,553 631,380 =
33,271,703 22,361,389 631,380 105,758
Notes:
a. The aged analysis of trade payables at the balance
sheet date is as follows:
RE
THE GROUP
2005 2004
BT T
HKS$ HK$
10,930,696 1,939,907
1,968,428 386,604
46,292 67,780
- 3,390
12,945,416 2,397,681

9,
Al m Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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24. BN RAE E M E AR

I8 ()
Kiax - (&)

b. R-ZEEWNE=A=+—0 ' it
P FRIB B IE BB AR B E B Y
510Kk AERENZRELD
13,300,000 7T B @FHIBE R &
E-RTAF-AST-ALFE

4+ 3
RS o

EAHRBARDERR
A
ABREARER B RARER

R {E R o

B =H OB 2 B & R 2

i«’

al
{&—

&

"<

Trade and other payables

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

b. As at 31st March, 2004, there was approximately
HK$13,300,000 other payables in respect of
consideration payable for the purchase of 51%
equity interests in First Oriental. The amount was
fully settled during the year ended 31st March,
2005.

Amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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26.

REHRITEE

26. Secured bank borrowings

rEE
THE GROUP
2005 2004
BT T
HKS$ HK$
RITER Bank loans 7,116,023 -
AR T Y EHE S Repayable as follows:
—F A Within one year 602,039 -
—FEMF Between one to two years 622,558 -
MEERF Between two to five years 2,002,464 -
RTFRE Over five years 3,888,962 -
7,116,023 -
B IEREBEE Less: Amount due within one year
Z—FNA included under current
B HAFRIE liabilities (602,039) -
— 1% B AR IE Amount due after one year 6,513,984 -

R-FFTAF=_A=+t—8 HFEHA
RITEETIUNAKRE ZRITERRE
TEHHWREFELSER - BEARTE
ENEBOIMSN R EALARER
BB

R{ER o

RZEZEWNF=RA=+—H ' &A
ﬁfﬁﬁlﬁﬁ%&ffEfﬂ:iﬂfWﬁZﬁ
10,000,000/8 TLIRITIF 3 - BLEHEE
H WEHBEMRITEE -

As at 31st March, 2005, the secured bank
borrowings were secured by the bank deposits and
certain land and buildings of the Group. The bank
borrowings bore interest at prevailing market rates
and repayable in accordance with the relevant loan

agreements.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Company had pledged
its bank deposits of approximately HK$10,000,000
for the general banking facilities granted to the Group
and no bank borrowings were utilised as at the

balance sheet date.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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27. ES—REM B AT KIE 27. Amount due to a subsidiary

28.

ERFEAEER RELEETE
B HRZERBHTIERNEER

Bt T —EAREE - RISERD

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment. The amount will not be

repayable within twelve months from the balance

HH - sheet date and is therefore shown as non-current.
iE #E B 15 28. Deferred taxation

AEERNFARAZEIZELEHER
B(EE) REZFHWT:

thereon for the year:

A%H THE GROUP

R-EZE=FMAE—H At 1st April, 2003
GTAMEEEKA (Credit) charge to income for the year
KEKB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
HE2HFE Effect of change in tax rate
RZZEME=A=+—H At 31st March, 2004
GrANEFEKRA (Credit) charge to income for the year

RZBZRF=FA=+—H At 3]st March, 2005

{

g
W
=
B
152
=5
af
=
B
BT
o
&4
R

The following are the major deferred tax liability

(asset) recognised by the Group and movements

MEHE T E HBER &t
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
699,457 (699,457) -
(222,343) 279,510 57,167
722,684 = 722,684
65,574 (65,574) -
1,265,372 (485,521) 779,851
(350,019) 429,288 79,269
915,353 (56,233) 859,120

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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28.

IEEBLIE ()
R_ZTRFE=A=+—8 A£H
£ 4938,382,000 L (ZEZT M F -
23,025,000/ 7T) AR B A 1B B4R AT A
EEHEBEEN - 2R ABED
321,000 T (Z 2 T M 4
2,774,000/ 7T) 2 B EEREL R IE

R ESATER B 1& 2% FI KR - I &
FLER T T IHET 1B 4938,061,0007 7T (=
ZZPUE 1 20,251,000 7T) HERIE L
MEEE -

RZETERF=A=+—8 ' ££H
FIEUBR FEH — B E AR 2 AT 40
BE R ZEH 491,703,000 T (ZEZE
P9 : 1,253,000 7T) B EIARE
TE 1% A FE R B A AT A VB K 85 AT 4R
UREZ8 RUERATNRERERE
BRELEHIBEEE -

ARBRNFARAINEREAALEEFE
RARBEERERE -

28. Deferred taxation (continued)

At 31st March, 2005, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$38,382,000 (2004:
HK$23,025,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such losses of approximately HK$321,000
(2004: HK$2,774,000).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$38,061,000 (2004: HK$20,251,000) due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

At 31st March, 2005, the Group has deductible
temporary differences associated with general
provision on trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,703,000 (2004: HK$1,253,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is uncertain
that taxable profit will be available against which

the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company has no significant unprovided deferred

taxation for the year or at the balance sheet date.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited




ANNUAL REPORT 2005

B O% #m ok M A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZTTRH=F=1—BILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

29. |7 29. Share capital
R4HEE BE
Number of
shares Value
BT
HK$
EERAK Authorised:
R-ZEZ=FWA—H Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREEIETLY at 1st April, 2003
ST 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
HAEEE (Kfifa) Adjustment of nominal value (note a) = (80,971,380)
8 (M ita) Cancellation (note a) (1,100,318,000) (110,031,800)
0 (Hfita) Additions (note a) 19,100,318,000 191,003,180
RZZTWER Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
“ZZRE=R at 31st March, 2004 and 2005
=t-A8k
EE0.01# T2
TRk 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
BETRER : Issued and fully paid:
RZZTE=FWA—H Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREMFECIET at 1st April, 2003
Lk 899,682,000 89,968,200
AREE (Ffifa) Adjustment of nominal value (note a) - (80,971,380)
10 (Hfib) Additions (note b) 162,500,000 1,625,000
o (Krac) Additions (note c) 187,000,000 1,870,000
RZZEZEWMFE=A=+—H  Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BREEOIE L2 EAA  at 31st March, 2004 1,249,182,000 12,491,820
0 (fiitd) Additions (note d) 497,614,604 4,976,146
RZZTHF=HA=1+—H Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BREMBEOIBILZEBER  at 31st March, 2005 1,746,796,604 17,467,966

9,
B f B B 2B R A& B 24 7 MTown Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

% #® o®k M O&E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. B &)

ﬁi_?%ﬂi A=+t—BLEEzE
BRAZEHMT :

AN A B FE R SH AR AR ) 0.09
BT AR AIERE BT
B 2 HEHFRR0.10%4
LR ZE & R%0.0175 7T ([AR
AL

(@ -

— PIB AR R RIARBEITEERE

B 88

= KRR FEEZFREEOO]
7 IL.219,100,318,0000% ¥
LAk AR ENEERAE
EMERABEERAR

200,000,000/% 7T

- FHEBETRAF KRR Z
FEES AR AR RTEEBE
858,301,135/ 7T (B A A A
RZEZE-_F=A=+—H
ZREBEB)AN - ZEER
BB AKRA A A SR
HEA -

BRARAKEDRZ F BN AR
AFBHA-_ZTE=FNA
ZtHEBAZBEA - W
TE=—FRA-+=ZBEIT
ZBREFRAE LBBRKRE
REBRESIE o

29. Share capital (continved)

Notes:

The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year
ended 31st March, 2004 were as follows:

(a)

the nominal value of each issued ordinary
share of the Company was reduced from
HK$0.10 per share to HK$0.01 per share
by the cancellation of HK$0.09 of the
capital

Reduction”);

paid up thereon ("Capital

all of the authorised but unissued share

capital of the Company was cancelled;

the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to the original
authorised share capital of
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 19,100,318,000 new ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each;

the amount of the paid up issued share
capital being cancelled was first credited
to accumulated losses account of
HK$8,301,135 of the Company (being the
accumulated loss of the Company as at
31st March, 2002) and the balance of such
credit was credited to a distributable

reserve of the Company.

Details of the Capital Reduction was set
out in the Company'’s circular dated 25th
April, 2003 and were approved pursuant
to shareholder resolutions passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 23rd May,
2003.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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29. B &)

K&t

(b)

(%&)

RZFT=F+A+=8  AAdF
A7 37 5 = J5 Bt 5 13,000,0007 7T
2Bk ES - SREMREL0.08
P TT AR B F IR 2 16K R AR
FUARE - RATRRESEEEE
TR KRR BETAE R
162,500,0000% f& {5 o A # A% & %
REMEOR_ET=F+A=-1+
M H5SERK °

X

—EE=F+—A=RH- =

E=F+—ARBR=_ZTT=F+
— A/ B ' 37,500,000 -
56,250,000/% } 68,750,000/% % 15

2 B AT #2 Ik (B 35 1 2 T S5 MR RS D
B REEAT o

REAMRES ZFBEHRRARA
BEMAR_ZTE=Ft+A-thHZ
WA - TR HRARER
—EE=FLA_tHARTZR
RBFRG LEFERZ —REE
AT o

B OB 2 R & B 2

29. Share capital (continved)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

On 13th October, 2003, the Company placed
convertible bond of HK$13,000,000 to
independent third parties. The conversion price is
HK$0.08 per share and subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
bond instruments. A total of 162,500,000 shares
will be allotted and issued upon the conversions
in full of the convertible bond. The convertible
bond placement agreement was completed on

24th October, 2003.

On 3rd November, 2003, 5th November, 2003
and 6th November, 2003, there were 37,500,000
shares, 56,250,000 shares and 68,750,000 shares
allotted and issued upon the conversion in full of

the convertible bonds, respectively.

Details of the placement of convertible bond was
set out in the Company's circular dated 29th
October, 2003 and the conversion shares were
issued pursuant under the general mandate granted
to the directors at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on 24th July, 2003.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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29. B &)

Hrat (&)

©

=

\—EENF_A=+FHH ' &R
AIFT M BE & % - BB AR0.055%
TR AR NBE LR EH T
31,000,0000% 37 A& 15 - T2z F 37 AR
MER=ZZETMFE=A+BEHET -

[ A - ZA2QEEEEZ R R Origin
Limited % Fe & IR 5] 32 B & R RHE
W& © #& U ¢ Origin Limited[A & 3%
FRIVE KD 0.0558 70 * mAD
RANEBILRAEERE S H
156,000,0000% 38 A 2 & iR 5 + I
ZER0.055B LM ARAREE
#£156,000,0008% #7 i 1 © 52 F#
BHNER=-_ZZTMF=A+H%

=

11 -

ERRBEZHBERNAARBHS
—EEONF=A+AAZEERA
MR TDRARBR _BE=4F1
—A=ZHBTZRRFNARGLE
ERERZ - RIREET -

8 B OB 2 KR & R

29. Share capital (continved)

Notes: (continued)

©

On 25th February, 2004, the Company entered
into the placing agreement to issue 31,000,000
new shares to not less than six independent
investors at HK$0.055 per share. The new shares

were issued on 10th March, 2004.

On the same date, the Company entered into the
placing and subscription agreement with Origin
Limited, the substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the placing agent, whereby, Origin
Limited has agreed to place an aggregate
156,000,000 existing placing shares to not less
than six independent investors at HK$0.055 per
existing share and subscribe an aggregate of
156,000,000 new shares from the Company at
HK$0.055 per new share. The new shares were

issued on 10th March, 2004.

Details of the above were set out in the Company's
circular dated 15th March, 2004 and the shares
were issued pursuant under the general mandate
granted given to the directors at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 3rd

November, 2003.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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29. B &)

et o (48)
BE_ZTTRAF=-A=+—HIEFEZE
BRAZEINOT -

(d RN_ZEENE+—B=+MAE &

Tﬂiﬁ*%m'ﬁ%i%—ﬁ
BT AR 2S5 /519,000,000
B TT (}tt9,5oo,ooo,%%57z) AT
REH - AR EHFIZF B ESE
BH¥FINAFE - RBERERER
MO REEETEARTS BB
FTFTsR SR IR D FH U THE @ AR
NEEZREE °

BHEFR=_ZTEF+=ANH
BT WRZ-ZZTTERF—A+NAB
ETTRF-_A—HHMRER
0.04278 7L 20.0518 L 2 AR ER
AR o AL - :./\248901248
AR D ThZ AR BIR —_EZE M F+
ﬂ:+ﬁa%ﬁ2h%@¢ﬁ§t
EERER —MBEREMEE RE
T °

“HEFR_ZETERF—AZ
%ﬁ'lnggﬁif A—H
EZTTRF-_A+ABHEES
f%0.038/% 7L £0.0397% EZMM‘;
‘BEBm R - At A H
248,713,356 B 0 Th iR AN A &1 R
ZETERF-ANARITZBRER
RIRE FERER 2 EREME
BERET o

|
-

NEFBBZHFBERARGET
TNF+—A-+HEE=_ZZTN
F+_AZ-+tHORFHE ZRAGR
K o

BT 2 ARG ER A S S
YR RELBRTARSES -

al

&

29.

Share capital (continved)

Notes: (continued)

The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year
ended 31st March, 2005 were as follows:

(d) On 24th November, 2004, the Company entered
into the placing agreement to issue convertible
bonds of an aggregate principal amount of
HK$19,000,000 to independent third parties in 2
tranches (each of HK$9,500,000). The convertible
bond borne interest at the rate of 5% per annum
payable half yearly in arrears. The conversion price
is subject to the average of the closing price per
share of the Company as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the 10 consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of conversion, or
the nominal value of the share, whichever is higher.

The Tranche 1 bond was issued on 9th December,
2004 and converted in full during the period from
19th January, 2005 to 1st February, 2005 at
conversion price ranged from HK$0.042 to
HK$0.051 per share. Accordingly, a total of
248,901,248 shares were allotted and issued
pursuant under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26th July, 2004.

The Tranche 2 bond was issued on 20th January,
2005 and converted in full during the period from
1st February, 2005 to 16th February, 2005 at
conversion price ranged from HK$0.038 to
HK$0.039 per share. A total of 248,713,356 shares
were allotted and issued accordingly pursuant the
specific mandate granted to the directors at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 6th January, 2005.

Details of the above were set out in the Company's

announcement and circular dated 24th November,
2004 and 20th December, 2004 respectively.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu

with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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30.

BRES

ARFH 2 EAA=TH
R-EE-4MA=+mARAEA
((=22BEHE)) RNEBBRE
B(=2T=F:8) XBEEM
SERABHEBREER -

BIR-—ZETT

— ==

|- RAB A REA
RAFHEMBRARZEEREER D

ARBARBEN 2 BRE - PR
ZBRNBERZREBRITHAEELZ
10% °« RRBAEERE _ZTETF5T
SR

REXBERFENANE LBBZRE
P RARBIRIE-FRTFFFI ALK
M_ZET_FFE (R T ——FN
AZt=HEW @ AARAR_-FZ
—FEEEEREMNZAERAL(BRE
ARARXEMBERARCES - BER
BRE) XL A RBARR RN 2B
B MELEHEREZRERE

ﬁ o

%Yﬂ

30. Share option scheme

The Company's previous and existing share option
schemes were adopted on 20th September, 2000
(the "2000 Scheme”) and on 24th April, 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”), respectively, for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and

eligible employees.

Pursuant to the 2000 Scheme, the Company might
grant options to the directors and the employees of
the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of
10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital.
No share options were granted under the 2000

Scheme.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting, the Company terminated the 2000
Scheme and adopted the 2002 Scheme, which will
expire on 23rd April, 2011, the Company may grant
options to the eligible persons fall within the
definition prescribed in the 2002 Scheme including
directors, the employees and consultants etc. of the
Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1

for each lot of share options granted.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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BRESE

BRI BRI A R 2 A AR 21
B o BT 2 AR A A B
AR S A e T EERY A S
RIA T AT o A Y RS R
TRAKE SRS TEBEBALTRE
ZRBARAZ 0% TR aERE
ST B R B AR R AT
517 2 EMBA

BRAEEDAAAFNESTSETE -
YHRALVBEBARABRMRIREZERAZ
WHERERRZAMAAMEEEA
Bz FHRMEMER ZESE -

RE-_ZZ_FHEATREERES
BREMPR2BNBEE  TEEER
B_TT _FIERCHETRAUE
TR ARBZ 1% °

RE_TERF=A=+—ALWAF
A ERRE T FHBAKRA
REE /R AR B RE -
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30. Share option scheme (continued)

Options granted should be accepted within 21 days
from the offer date. Options granted are exercisable
during the period commencing on the date of grant
and expiring on the date ten years after the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time excluding any shares issued upon
the exercise of options granted pursuant to the 2002

Scheme.

The exercise price per share is determined by the
directors of the Company, and shall be at least the
higher of the closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of grant and the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which may
be granted to an eligible employee under the 2002
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being

issued and issuable under the 2002 Scheme.

No share options were granted to the directors/
employees of the Company under the 2002 Scheme
during the two years ended 31st March, 2005

respectively.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005

% #® o®k M O&E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTTRAH=F=1—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2005

27 THE COMPANY
RZZZ2=£MA-A At Tst April, 2003
R Capital Reduction
ki Issue of new shares
hOESEST Share issue expenses
FERER Net loss for the year

RZZEME=A=1-H At 31st March, 2004

ki Issue of new shares
RAEAR Share issue expenses
EREER Net loss for the year

R-ZERE=A=T-H At 315t March, 2005

ARABZBABRBRTIIERRGETZ
3% B% @ 18 350,000/ 7T £ Town
Health (BVI) Limited (iRIER T T L
FUAETZEEEHBERERRG
KWEZHBAR) 2EEFELY
28,530,000/ 7T 2 = 58 °

AR Az A R R R 4R B SE 29 PR B
P 7S B R AT E A SRR ©

R_ZEERF=ZA=+—H8 ' AAF
2 E F #49105,054,0007% 7T Al 5
KT IR (ZZZ M4 170,919,000
EIT) o

31. Reserves

Rt aE BARR THARRR 2EFR &3t
Share  Contributed Distributable ~Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
AT BT BT BT AT
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
116,060,008 28,179,599 - (12474911) 131,764,696
= = 72,670,245 8,301,135 80,971,380
19,790,000 - - - 19,790,000
(655,530) - - - (655,530)

- - - (60951,180)  (60951,180)

135194478 28179599 72670245  (65124956) 170,919,366
14,023,854 - - - 14023854
(1,096,763) - - - (1,09,763)

- - - (79792,046)  (79792046)

148,121,569 28179599 72,670245  (144917002) 104054411

J
<

&

€

al

e

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of
HK$350,000 of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the net asset value of approximately
HK$28,530,000 of Town Health (BVI) Limited, a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares

pursuant to the group reorganisation in April 2000.

The distributable reserve of the Company represents
the amount arising from the Capital Reduction as
set out in note 29.

As at 31st March, 2005, approximately
HK$105,054,000 of the Company’s reserves were
available for distribution to shareholders (2004:
HK$170,919,000).

2
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32. BB FE]

PR FEE -

ME - BB R&E

&

JRE Uiz B 73R I L At B W RO
RITRREER
EHE

R AT B R % L At FE AN SRR
DR E S
RITREMEER

P R R & 5K
& TH A R E

EEHIR

FE B IR

o EF R AT
ERRR —F
RWNCIPA ¥

5]

I

<fHFR

ENRERE
H A & 3R IA
W B B 2 AR RE B X

ERKENRBARZ
RekBReEEER
MAN BT

ENRERE
PRRBBRITEBR LIRS

ERKERBERARZ
REeRtFa

32. Acquisition of subsidiaries

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash balances
Investments in securities
Trade and other payables
Minority interests

Bank and other borrowings
Loan from shareholders
Obligations under finance lease
Deferred taxation

Taxation payable

Less: Interest acquired in prior year
recognised as interest
in an associate

Goodwill

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration paid

Other payable
Related expense paid on acquisition

Analysis of net inflow of cash and

cash equivalents in connection with

the acquisition of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration paid
Bank balances and cash acquired

Net cash outflow in respect of the
acquisition of subsidiaries

J
<

af
=
B
BT
&

2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
1,130,975 14,802,704
7,314,202 373,457
5,949,207 1,093,764
5,087,424 1,453,202
- 1,442,450
(14,231,807) (689,254)
(2,303,176) (3,550,741)
- (3,711,934)
- (2,105,250)
- (1,596,457)
- (722,684)
- (251,949)
2,946,825 6,537,308
- (1,124,572)
26,680,169 22,904,953
29,626,994 28,317,689
27,500,000 14,981,811
- 13,335,878
2,126,994 -
29,626,994 28,317,689
29,626,994 14,981,811
(5.087,424) (1,453,202)
24,539,570 13,528,609
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32. WIBHIE 2 A ) 32. Acquisition of subsidiaries
(continued)

HE_ZTZELF=-A=1+—HILFE The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st
NEEZMBARAASE 2 £ X5 March, 2005 contributed HK$50,306,819 to the
MAEBEBZRLEEBED A& X Group's turnover and a gain of approximately
50,306,819 7T H i &2 7,057,000/ 7T HK$7,057,000 to the Group's loss from operations.
2 WEs e
HE_ZTZENF=A=1+—HILFE The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st
ARBZHBARIALRER 2 & X% March, 2004 contributed HK$1,353,148 to the
MAEEBZRLEEBED A& X Group's turnover and a profit of HK$81,294 to the
1,353,148/8 7L BA K 81,294 T 2 4 Group's loss from operations.
A e

B f B B 2B R A R 2 Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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33. HEKWEB QT

33. Disposal of subsidiaries

2005 2004
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
T & 2 FEE Net assets disposed of:
Mz - WE R EE Property, plant and equipment - 138,625
5E Inventories - 157,371
JE 5 BR TR T K b FE WK Trade and other receivables - 290,951
G Tax recoverable - 111,228
IR1T RN G &R Bank and cash balances - 43,163
FERTBR S R E A BB Trade and other payables - (1,220,623)
RITEE Bank borrowings - (7,224)
- (486,509)
s AEINSES Release of goodwill - 2,294,493
BREEISFIRE Transferred to investments in securities - (1,999,101)
FEE Net liabilities - (191,117)
& B R A W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 191,118
- 1
PAWCER 3R & KB 2 fF Satisfied by cash consideration received - 1
ERALEWNBRARZ Analysis of net outflow of cash in
e mb#HE connection with the disposal
AWMWAT : of subsidiaries:
BERRERE Cash consideration received - 1
T &ERIT XA S 4%  Bank and cash balances disposed - (43,163)
- (43,162)
BE_TTNEF=A=+—RHILFE The subsidiaries disposed of had no significant

mﬁ%zmg AHAEERZE
EEBRESERTREAYE -

i3

2004.

9,
5 R 2 7 Mv Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

contribution to the Group’s turnover and the Group's
loss from operations for the year ended 31st March,
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34.

35.

WEABRITEDMH 34. Acquisition of medical and

FTiis 2 F B E - Net assets acquired:

kS Goodwill
SRR Satisfied by:
He Cash

dental practices

HERBRTEZH 35. Disposal of medical and

FItEZFEE : Net assets disposed of:
[l Goodwill

HEER Loss on disposal
SRR Satisfied by:

Re Cash

H h g Y 5R B Other receivables

B =H OB 2 KR & R 2

Iy
&
R

2005 2004
7T o
HKS$ HK$

- 950,000
- 950,000
dental practices

2005 2004
7T BT
HKS$ HK$

- 2,000,000
- (1,500,000)
- 500,000
- 500,000
- 500,000

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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36. iR {KE RS

AEERBEMBRERER TR
HIERTERETS - B EEREAE
BrEENRARTAE  WAEFEAES
ZEEHAR - AKBERGEIFLER
A A 5% 2 R - MEBANELSE

B o

Rz R 2 B A E% 41,053,000
BT (ZEZEM4E ¢ 1,051,00087T)
ThIEREBRERNEMNTE ZHR -

BARERE
F79 - AEER DB R TR
RBE R i Sz — R B B R L BT L B
mE - FSRETBEARE
30,000,0007T °

Al

RZEZRFR_ZZTME=A=+
—H ARRAUEERERALE -

B =H OB 2 B & R 2

al
{&—

"<

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is

matched by employees.

The total cost charged to the income statements of
approximately HK$1,053,000 (2004:
HK$1,051,000) represents contributions payable to
the scheme by the Group during the year.

Capital commitments

During the year, the Group entered into a letter of
intent for the setting up of a medical centre with a
hospital in Beijing, the PRC, for a consideration of

not more than RMB30,000,000.

As at 31st March, 2005 and 2004, the Company

had no significant capital commitments.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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38. BEHENKIE 38. Operating lease commitments
K
THE GROUP
2005 2004
BT T
HK$ HK$

FRTWELEMLY  Minimum lease payments paid under
F i & (K 46 & I8 operating leases in respect of properties

during the year 13,352,264 15,266,134
REEH  AEERETTREZE At the balance sheet dates, the Group had
FHAOAEARTIRHBE N 2R commitments for future minimum leases payments
REEBEREAT : under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

2005 2004

BT BT

HKS$ HK$

—F R Within one year 11,010,719 6,674,000
E_EFERF In the second to fifth year

(BEEEMSF) inclusive 14,025,869 8,435,000

25,036,588 15,109,000

EEMARBLEAESEREE T2 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable

FAIRAEMEREN 2HE - HAOR by the Group for certain of its clinics and office

FIZEcleRMEhFHER - premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed

for a term ranging two to five years.

RNENEE B I EE AL EHLO & The Company had no significant operating lease
@ commitments at the balance sheet date.

P

9,
B f B B 2B R & B 24 7 m@%wn Health International Holdings Company Limited
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39,

40.

H fth &4
BER_ZZE-—FXA+=HFILZ
R AEEAGRAREE
RNAEl &2 ENE A F3 Ben Genomics
Hong Kong Limited([3
Genomics]) IRt & EE S - V1L RH
ME - BELA750,0008 T AR - A

it ks
k=

Ben

R B B B (R - &
BeBAERRRARET - R-F

THE=H=1T—H ' KX&EE M3 Ben
Genomics# 57 #1656,000/8 7T © A A&
HRRHEEES - ZEXNEIREZRE
—TTRAFZAZ+—HALEFEARAR
HER

FNE

j%ﬁﬁ

R-ZEZE =A=+—H ' &KA7
F— KB R RER A 8492,975,000

I Z SR1TIS ERE 1 [A) B 7% 44 8 1 it
NAElER -HERAREESRAZEERE
%49 /2,961,0008 TT, °

R-ZZMF=A=+—H80 ~&H
RARBEERMERLAEE -

39.

40.

Other commitments

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 13th
June, 2001, the Group had undertaken to provide
working capital to 3 Ben Genomics Hong Kong
Limited ("3 Ben Genomics”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of an associate of the Group, to the extent
of HK$750,000 every year for an initial term of two
years with automatic renewal upon expiry of the
agreement (the “Undertaking”). The amount of the
Undertaking is subject to revision upon approval by
the shareholders. As at 31st March, 2004, the Group
advanced approximately HK$656,000 to 3 Ben
Genomics for financing its working capital and the
amount was fully repaid during the year ended 31st
March, 2005.

Contingent liabilities

At 31st March, 2005, the Company had provided a
corporate guarantee to a bank in respect of the
banking facilities granted to a subsidiary to the extent
of approximately HK$2,975,000. The amount of
facilities utilised by the subsidiary amounted to

approximately HK$2,961,000.

At 31st March, 2004, the Group and the Company

had no significant contingent liabilities.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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EEERKH
R_ZTRFE=A=+—8 A£H
LABR B 49,975,000 7T 2 & T 18
& + i & 12 F A & 10,000,000 7T 2
BITFERERTEBER 2 —RIIB1T
MEZHER -

FEFRERS
R-ZFFEMF+—-—A=-+tHME - AR
AEBVESREBIVESHE A
ABEBMBILE =5 19,000,000
BT A BRRES - AT RRESFRNF
MN1Z T 0.036/ 7T £0.05 18I0 .2 A,
REBHRKR  WEERBRETEH
497,614,604 I 17 o

B =H OB 2 R A R

ol
2y

1. Pledge of assets

As at 31st March, 2005, certain leasehold land and
buildings of the Group with the net book value of
approximately HK$9,975,000 and bank deposits of
HK$10,000,000 were pledged to secure general
bank facilities granted to the Group.

Major non-cash transaction

On 24th November, 2004, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with an independent
placing agent in connection with the placing of
HK$19,000,000 convertible bond, to independent
third parties. A total of 497,614,604 shares were
allotted and issued upon the conversion in full of
the convertible bond at conversion price ranged from

HK$0.036 to HK$0.051 per share during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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43.

EBEALTXRSZ X% 43. Related party transactions and

FRAKEEBBEANALITZTS

BAXRS :

EREATER
Name of related party

ERBRAF (ffita)
Oriental Elite Limited (note a)

ERBRBERAR (B 72b)
Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited (note b)

EmERAR AR (Hfia)

Plasmagene Limited (note a)

5 Bl 1R B R 3 R
AR AT (Ktc)

Specially for you International
Development Limited
(note c)

i 7T 2 425 AR B EL BT 2 A
(Kfzta)

WYT Holdings and its subsidiaries
(note a)

R

balances

During the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with related parties:

XHMHE

Nature of transactions

BeRx (Kig)

Rental expenses (note g)

BERRE® (Kig)
Purchase of healthcare products

(note g)

XNEREER (Hitg)
Laboratory fee paid (note g)

XHERE
(Hiztg)
Consultancy fee paid (note g)

EEER &
(Kfzth)
Purchase of traditional Chinese
medicines (note h)
XERE (ffzth)
Management fee paid (note h)
XHEEE (ffith)

Promotional fee paid (note h)

{

>
al
L
&4
R

2005
BT
HK$

2,079,443

426,845

364,000

18,969

12,647

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

2004
BT

HK$

300,000

2,336,022

855,300

364,000

1,864,586

116,162

77442
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A

EREALTXRZR#EEE 43. Related party transactions and
balances (continued)

(%)

EHEALER

Name of related party

BiEERERRQA (Matd)
Weissford Development Limited
(note d)

BB R A (Kfite)

Wisesure Limited (note e)

REBRRAF (K ata)

Silver Ascot Limited (note a)

BHTFRMREBR AR (FfiFa)
Bess Dental Services Limited
(note a)

RERBRAER LA
(ftita)

Long Faith International Limited
(note a)

#ox-EES(ER)
ARR7 (K iza)

Next Dimension Advertising
(H.K.) Limited (note a)

REME
Nature of transactions

RmMERMAX (Hitg)

Food and catering expenses

(note g)
TERBERA (K
Management services fee income
(note f)
TEERBEHRX (HiEg)
Management services fee
expenses (note g)

AFRE WA (K atf)

Licence fee income (note f)

BEERBEUA (Fitg)
Management services fee income
(note g)

TEERBEUA (Hizg)
Management services fee income
(note g)

BEERBERA
(Htatg)

Management services fee income
(note g)

IHHERESE
(Ktitg)

Promotion and advertising fees paid

(note g)
X ERE (fftg)
Consultancy fee paid (note g)

Iy
&
R

R 2

2005
BT
HK$

794,765

240,000

50,000

720,000

1,022,687

126,000

110,204

951,386

1,000,000

2004
BT
HKS$

749,226

240,000

720,000

21,000

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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43. EREATIXRF R &

(%)

HraE

©)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

®

(h)

AREZNHEAT, HEAT -

BEEEEREEZRA WA
ARAIMBERRRREEERE (Y
H)ERARBZES -

ARBEIZFE2ENBRANTEE
EXARHARERAFZ LK

BETEL EoEALEREER
FEREBEZIRNETHEERE
e A/NCTIG

AEMEZ HIZERT
WER S TH2ER MR ERE
BT -
WERSTIRBEBINETEER
1% € Z {&FRRT L °

WER S IRIEARE L k. Ik

e N

TAR) A ©

B OB 2 R & B 2

43. Related party transactions and
balances (continued)

Notes:
(a) The Group's former associate/associate.

(b) A company in which Mr. Lai Kwok Fai is the director
and, is also the director of the Company's
subsidiary, Audio Health Hearing Care (Shatin)
Limited.

(o) A minority shareholder of the Company's non-
wholly owned subsidiary, Harmonic Beauty and
Body Slimming Company Limited.

(d) A company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, Mr. Cho
Kam Luk and Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin are directors
and have beneficial interests.

(e) The Group's investee company.

() These transactions were determined with reference

to the terms of the relevant agreements.

() These transactions were entered at terms

determined and agreed by the relevant parties.

(h) These transactions were entered in accordance with

the terms of the relevant franchise agreement.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

{

al
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A

EREATXRZRER
(&)
R-ZEZTRAF=A=+—0 ' X&H
BARNBMITEETEETFBAE LB
# ' LA990,000 8B THREWBE B £
i # 2 Pherson Limited 33%# & ©

o BEEFBERBRE_TTAF
A=t BLFERAEERERZ
—RIRITEEMAEES AMRITHE
HEAER -

CEHEAMEATEGZFEE
EEEBBERENF18 23K

=

eu}

i

N

5

o

BEXPEEESI  FALELREFH
BALAIZEMEAR H ol F KRR
WMEBEKRGEH

B =H OB 2 R A R

ol
2y

43. Related party transactions and

balances (continued)

On 31st March, 2005, the Group entered into an
agreement with Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, who is an
executive director of the Company, to acquire 33%
interest in Pherson Limited held by Dr. Cho at a
consideration of HK$990,000.

In additions, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee issued personal
guarantees to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group during the year ended
31st March, 2005 at nil consideration.

Details of balance with related parties as at the
balance sheet date are set out in the consolidated

balance sheet and in notes 18, 23 and 25.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other
significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the

end of the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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44.

FEBRSE

(a) RZZETREFWMA+—H &
ARMBILE=ZFEE
32,000,000% JT 2 A] # g f&
% o MRE RER0.0378 T
AR BB 55 IR 2 IR B MR 15
MAE - AIMKRESFN_TZ
AFENMA-_+-—HE-_ZTZEH
FRA-Z+=-HHHAREERLR
B% & 3£864,864,8640% 8% 15 A
Ut T B B R BEAT o

RZTEZERFWAZ+H K
‘A A] B2 Broad Idea International
Limited ([Broad Ideal) 5] 32 R B8
Wik - &t - Broad Ideaf$ 2R
BhWE 2 ERREGLNER
00378 T 2 HITERB
2,384,932,0600 &~ A & i {7 °

(®)

Broad ldeaR N B R X EF 57t
MRIzEREEREZERA
A AAREMITESETEET
BAEHEAS0.1%E R °

HEREZHFBEHNRARF]

—_TERFMNA-TRHARC
ZZRERA+=BHRITIE
ZAflBE - EARESEIA
ER-_ZETRAFHAA=+—H
SERX °

{

g
W
=
B
52
=5
af
=
B
BT
o
&4
R

(@

(®)

44. Subsequent events

On 11th April, 2005, the Company placed
convertible bond of HK$32,000,000 to
independent third parties. The conversion
price was HK$0.037 per share subject to
adjustment in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the bond instruments. A total
of 864,864,864 shares were allotted and
issued upon the conversion in full of the
convertible bond during the period from 22nd

April, 2005 to 23rd May, 2005.

On 20th April, 2005, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Broad Idea
International Limited (“Broad Idea”) pursuant
to which Broad Idea will subscribe for the
2,384,932,060 shares of the Company at an
issue price of HK$0.037 per share subject to
the terms and conditions of the subscription

agreement.

Broad Idea is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and is owned by Dr. Cho Kwai
Chee, an executive director of the Company,

as to 50.1%.

Details of this subscription were set out in
the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 20th April, 2005 and 12th
May, 2005 respectively. The above
subscription was completed on 31st May,

2005.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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45. T EKHE A T

NAER

Name of company

Town Health (BVI) Limited

Town Health Sourcing

Limited

Town Health Trademark

Limited

HMERY/
HERERER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EBERAEE/
ARAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

EBRAEE/
BRAA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

RERLES
/BRAR

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

72 R A R

45. Principal subsidiaries

BRTRBRRE/
AR A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

1331,131% 71

US$1,331,131

17

US$1

E0

Uss1

{

al

Directly

NG TP
BRTRE/

o 1 AR 2 1

Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

capital/registered

capital held
by the Company
E# F:
Indirectly

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

Investment holding

EXEBRAM
MBEEZERA

Holder of trade name
and other intellectual

property rights

EEABRALM
MBEEZERA

Holder of trade name
and other intellectual

property rights

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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NAEH

Name of company

FREERBREARRA
Town Health Management

and Services Limited

REEER TR
REERAF
Town Health Medical &

Dental Services Limited

FREHEBRE
BRAA
Town Health Para-medical

Services Limited

45. X EH B A T @

ARRLEE/
EEERER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EB/ AR
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

B/ ERAA

o

Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

B/ ERRA

Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

58 R 2

al

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRORMERE/
R A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

2B
HK$2

28T

HK$2

28T

HK$2

&

ARAREZ
BRITRE/
AR AEE LA
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
E# GF:
Directly Indirectly

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

REERRTBRE
Provision of management
and administrative

services

REBERE

Provision of medical

service

RAZR

Investment holding

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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45. T EM B A T @)

NEER
Name of company

FRERERRRE
ERAA

Town Health Preventive
Healthcare Services
Limited

FRINEBRAH
Town Health Dental
Limited

RREANEERAR
Town Health IT Resources
Limited

ERBREREARAA

Health Matrix Network
Limited

MBI/
HEEREER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

EBRAEE/
ARAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

BB/ BRAT
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

BB/ BRAT
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company
B/ BRAT
Hong Kong/

limited liability
company

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRTRBRRE/
EREE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

17

Us$1

28T
HK$2

28T
HK$2

28T

HK$2

{

al

KAABEZ
BRTRE/
o IR A T 4 L
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

capital/registered
capital held
by the Company

E# F:
Directly Indirectly
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

RAER

Investment holding

RETRDERS
Provision of dental

consultation services

RAER

Investment holding

AEEREEA
REBERY

Provision of network
services to medical

cardholders

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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NAER

Name of company

FRES

32N

Audio Health Hearing Care
Limited

FRESEE (VA BRAA

Audio Health Hearing Care
(Shatin) Limited

FEARAA

Charter Most Limited

i3

45. X EH B A T @

ERRLE/
HEEREER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

ABRIEE/
ARART

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company
&R/ BRAH
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company
BE/ERAA
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

58 R 2

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRTRBRRE/
EfRE

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

10,000% 7

US$10,000

1,000 7T

HK$1,000

28T

HK$2

{

al

ARABEL
BERTRE/
AR AEELS
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
E¥ &

Directly Indirectly

- 51%

- 70%

- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

RAER

Investment holding

REENDERHAR
HEDBERE

Provision of audio
diagnostic tests and
sale of hearing-aid

devices

RS
85

Operation of a traditional

E

g
h

d&

bﬂ‘
il mw
S

‘? J&EH
oW BS
It

Chinese medicine retail
shop under a franchise

agreement

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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45. T EM B A T @)

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

RARARAEL
BRITRE/
i AR 2 fE L
AMRI%SE/ ERORBEZRE/ Proportion
ERRERER AR A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NEER form of share capital/ capital held TEXHR
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# F:
Directly Indirectly
RETERBEERAA BB/ EROA 28T - 100% RERK
Town Health Traditional Hong Kong/ HK$2 Investment holding
Chinese Medicine limited liability
Services Limited company
RREZEYHEARAA EBRLES/ 1,000% 70 100% - RABK
ARRA
Town Health Bio-Medical British Virgin US$1,000 Investment holding
Technalogy Limited Islands/
limited liability
company
Spring Biotech Limited EBRAEE/ 1% - 100% RAER
ARAT
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands/
limited liability
company

72 R A R

{

al

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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NAEH

Name of company

BAERA
Bright Dignity Limited

UENEES S E L
ARAT
Harmonic Beauty and Body

Slimming Company Limited

Dermatonic Skincare & Laser

Treatment Centre Limited

45. X EH B A T @

ARRLEE/
EEERER
Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity

Bk /BRAT
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company
B/ ERAA
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company
B/ ERAA
Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

al

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRARMERE/
R A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

100 7T
HK$100

1008 T

HK$100

1008 T

HK$100

&

ARABEL
BRTRE/
AR AEEL A
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

capital/registered
capital held
by the Company

E# GF:
Directly Indirectly
- 100%
- 70%
- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

RERERK
Provision of medical

services

RUEXAREE RS

Provision of beauty

and skin care services

REREEBER
BB B R

Provision of skincare
and laser treatment

services

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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45. T EWEB R T @ 45. Principal subsidiaries (continved)
ARABEZ
BRITRE/
o AR 5 £ L
AMRIEE/ ERTRERRE/ Proportion
ERREER R A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NEER form of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# F:

Directly  Indirectly

REBRHR ABRANE/ 1,100% 7T - 51% RERR
ARAT
First Oriental British Virgin US$1,100 Investment holding
Islands/
limited liability
company
REBRHURARAR B/ ARAA 1,000,000% 7T - 51% RERK
First Oriental Medical Hong Kong/ HK$1,000,000 Investment holding
Technology Limited limited liability
company
First Oriental Cyclotron BE/ERAF 1,000,0005% 7T = 949 4LEBERRMZ
Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1,000,000 Production of isotopes
limited liability for medical uses
company

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

{

al

B =H OB 2 KR & R 2
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45. X EH B A T @

AREIREL
BRTREK/
ERRAEELS
ARMRIHY,/ ERTRERKA/ Proportion
ERREER R A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NAER form of share capital/ capital held
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company
E¥ GF:
Directly  Indirectly
Pacific Medical (Hong Kong) BB/ BRAA 1007 7T - 56.13%
Company Limited
Hong Kong/ HK$100
limited liability
company
Pacific Medical (China) B/ BERAH 10077 = 56.13%
Company Limited
Hong Kong/ HK$100
limited liability
company
LENEBESE hE/NEBELE 200,000% 7T - 56.13%
BRAT
PRC/ US$200,000
wholly owned

foreign enterprise

{

al

R 2

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

TEEH

Principal activities

HELHM R EENE
REMFHES
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

HELHM R EENE
REMFHES
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

HELHM R EENE
REMFHES
Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular

related surgical equipment

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive

length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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E3

= - Turnover

FEF (B1E)  Net (loss) profit for
LA the year

EERER

BEE Total assets

REE Total liabilities
DEREEAEZ  Minority interests
BRE S Shareholders’ funds

Results
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
FE T T 7T T T T T T T
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
179,536 109,717 123,878 100,030 102,531
(84,331) (87,669) 4,741 2,029 32,050
Balance sheet
R=HA=+—H
At 31st March,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
FiE T T FH&TT T 7T T 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
177,288 219,727 323,391 262,821 167,983
(41,905) (25,956) (68,441) (53,720) (52,990)
(11,969) (3,929) (69) (175) (31)
123,414 189,842 254,881 208,926 114,962
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